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1 WELCOME
2 COUNCIL BLESSING

“As we deliberate on the issues before us, we trust that we will reflect positively on the
communities we serve. Let us all seek to be effective and just, so that with courage, vision
and energy, we provide positive leadership in a spirit of harmony and compassion.”

| a matou e whiriwhiri ana i nga take kei mua i 6 matou aroaro, e pono ana matou ka kaha
tonu ki te whakapau mahara huapai mé nga hapori € mahi nei matou. Me kaha hoki
matou katoa kia whaihua, kia totika ta matou mahi, &, ma te maia, te tiro whakamua me te
hihiri ka taea te arahi i roto i te kotahitanga me te aroha.

3 APOLOGIES
4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

Notification from Elected Members of:

4.1 — any interests that may create a conflict with their role as an elected member relating
to the items of business for this meeting, and

4.2 — any interests in items in which they have a direct or indirect pecuniary interest as
provided for in the Local Authorities (Members’ Interests) Act 1968

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME FOR ITEMS RELATING TO THE AGENDA
6 MEMBERS’ BUSINESS

(@) Public Speaking Time Responses
(b) Leave of Absence

(c) Matters of an Urgent Nature (advice to be provided to the Chair prior to the
commencement of the meeting)

7 UPDATES

Nil
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8 REPORTS

8.1 LOCAL GOVERNMENT FUNDING AGENCY 2022/23 STATEMENT OF INTENT
Kaituhi | Author: lan Georgeson, Chief Financial Officer

Kaiwhakamana | Authoriser: Mark de Haast, Group Manager Corporate Services

TE PUTAKE | PURPOSE

1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Strategy and Operations Committee with the
Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA) draft 2022/23 Statement of Intent (SOI) and half
year report to 31 December 2021.

HE WHAKARAPOPOTO | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
2 Not required.

TE TUKU HAEPAPA | DELEGATION

3 The Council’s Strategy and Operations Committee has the authority to consider this report.

TAUNAKITANGA | RECOMMENDATIONS

A. That the Strategy and Operations Committee notes the contents of the draft Local
Government Funding Agency draft 2022/23 Statement of Intent and Half Year report to
31 December 2021.

TUAPAPA | BACKGROUND

4 The LGFA was incorporated in 2011 with the primary objective of optimising the debt funding
terms and conditions for participating local authorities. This includes providing savings in
annual interest costs, making longer-term borrowings available and enhancing the certainty
of access to debt markets.

5 The LGFA issues bonds to wholesale and retail investors and on-lends the funds raised to
participating local authorities (PLAs) with borrowing needs. The quality of the LGFA’s credit
rating and the liquidity created by issuing homogenous local authority paper, ensures that
participating councils can raise funds on better terms than if they were issuing in their own
name.

6 In 2012, Kapiti Coast District Council (the Council) became a principal shareholding local
authority! in the LGFA. The LGFA meets the Local Government Act (LGA) 2002 definition of
a Council Controlled Organisation (CCO) and as a shareholder in a CCO, the Council must
regularly undertake performance monitoring of that organisation to evaluate its contribution to
the achievement of the Council’s desired outcomes.

7 As a CCO, the LGFA must deliver to its shareholders a draft SOl on or before 1 March each
year. The LGFA board must consider any comments from its shareholders in relation to the
draft SOl and deliver a final SOI on or before 30 June.

8 The Council’s monitoring obligations are assisted by the Shareholders’ Council whose role is
to represent all the shareholders and ensure that all individual shareholder views are heard.
The Shareholders’ Council comprises five to ten appointees from the council shareholders,
and one from the Crown. During the year there were some changes to the makeup of the
shareholders council, and the council did not issue a letter of expectations.

! principal shareholding local authorities are those which invest capital in the LGFA and are expected to
receive a return on that capital.

ltem 8.1 Page 6
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HE KORERORERO | DISCUSSION

He take | Issues

9 The LGFA has issued its draft 2022/23 SOI.

10  Strategic priority areas, and the objectives and performance targets that sit within each area,
are summarised on the following table:

Strategic priorities

Objectives

Performance targets

Governance, capability
and business practice

Best practice corporate
governance

Model ethical behaviour
Achieve objectives and
performance targets

Ensure cost effective products
Be a good employer

Comply with foundation and
treasury policies

Maintain LGFA credit rating
equal to NZ Govt

Operating income >$18.3m
Operating expenses <$8.3m

Optimising financial
services for local
government

Interest savings relative to
alternative sources

Offer flexible products

Deliver operational best practice
Certainty of access to debt
markets

Share of LG long term debt
>80%

Total lending to borrowers
>$14,558m

Survey of borrowers value add
>85%

Successfully refinance 100%
existing loans

Meet 100% borrower lending
requests

Environmental and
social responsibility

Assist sector to achieve
sustainability objectives
Improve LGFA sustainability
outcomes

Comply with H&S act

Maintain Toitu carbon zero
certification

Meet reductions in carbon plan
Increase GSS lending book
Ensure annual report complies
with GRI standards

Meet all mandatory clime
reporting standards

Effective management
of loans

Improve LGFA sustainability
outcomes

Review 100% of borrowers
financial position

Meet each borrower at least
annually

Industry leadership
and engagement

Take proactive role to enhance
depth of LG market

Assist LG sector with significant
matters e.g. 3 waters

Support councils in development
of reporting on climate change

Report on actions underway

11 Indiscussing the draft SOl with LGFA, they identify two matters of note. The first is the
continuing focus on sustainability, with LGFA progressing their own organisational plan as
well as implementing the first Green, Social or Sustainable (GSS) loans with councils.

12 The second is the area of 3 Waters reform, where LGFAs goal is to ensure a smooth
transition for councils to the new arrangements. They continue to engage with DIA on the

reform process.

13 From a financial perspective, while surpluses of approximately $10-11m per annum are
forecast for the SOI period, LGFA’s primary objective is to deliver financial benefit to councils
by providing low cost borrowing. LGFA reduced their lending margin from 20 bps to 15 bps

from 1 July 2021.

Item 8.1
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2019/20 2020/21 | Dec 2021 | 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
$M $M Half year M M $M $M
(actual) (actual) $M (2022 SOI) | (draft 2023 | (draft 2023 | (draft 2023
(actual) SOl) SOl) SOl)
Total operating income 18.3 19.7 9.7 19.1 18.3 19.9 18.7
Operating expenses 7.7 7.7 3.8 7.8 84 8.2 8.6
Net profit 10.6 12.0 5.9 11.3 9.9 11.7 10.0
Total LG borrowing 10,900 12,066 13,513 13,294 14,558 15,567 16,270

14  The LGFA draft 2022/23 Statement of Intent and Half Year Report to 31 December 2021 are
attached as Appendix 1 and 2 to this report, and LGFA officials will present to the Strategy
and Operations Committee meeting.

Nga kowhiringa | Options

15 There are no options to consider within this report.

Tangata whenua

16 There are no tangata whenua considerations arising from this report.

Panonitanga ahuarangi | Climate change

There are no climate change considerations within this report. Ahumoni me nga rawa | Financial

and resourcing

18 There are no financial considerations arising from this report.

Ture me nga Tararu | Legal and risk

19 There are no legal considerations arising from the matters in this report.

Nga panga ki nga kaupapa here | Policy impact

20 In accordance with the LGA 2002, the Council has provided information on all of its CCOs in

its 2021/41 Long Term Plan.

TE WHAKAWHITI KORERO ME TE TUHONO | COMMUNICATIONS & ENGAGEMENT

Te mahere tuhono | Engagement planning

An engagement plan is not needed for this report to be considered.\Whakatairanga | Publicity

There are no publicity considerations.NGA APITIHANGA | ATTACHMENTS

1. LGFA draft 2022/23 Statement of Intent §
2. LGFA Half Year Report to 31 December 2021 §

Item 8.1
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LGFA

New Zealand Local
Government Funding Agency

Te PUtea KGwanatanga a-rohe

28 February 2022

Dear Shareholder
Draft Statement of Intent 2022-25

Please find attached a copy of the Draft Statement of Intent (SOI) for the 2022/23 year and two
subsequent years. A copy is also available for download on our website www.lgfa.co.nz.

LGFA continues to focus on delivering strong results for both our council borrowers and
shareholders.

For our borrowing councils we seek to optimize funding terms and conditions by
* Achieving savings in borrowing costs
e Provide longer dated funding and
e Provide certainty of access to markets

For our shareholders we are focused on

Delivering a strong financial performance

e Monitoring asset quality

e Enhancing our approach to treasury and risk management and

e Ensuring we have the correct governance framework and capital structure in place

For our guarantors we are focused on
e Minimising the risk of a call upon the guarantee through actively monitoring and managing

the business risks faced by LGFA including operational, credit, liquidity, interest rate and
funding risk.

The following points regarding the Draft SOl 2022-25 are worth noting:

e Profitability is forecast to remain strong with projections for Net Operating Gain of $9.9
million, $11.7 million, and $10.0 million for the next three years. We are cautious in placing
too much emphasis on the Year Three (2024/25) forecast given that over the next three
years, we estimate that $5.3 billion of our LGFA bonds and $5.7 billion of council loans
mature.

e Our council members based their borrowing projections in their 2021-31 Long Term Plans on
the assumption that the Three Water reforms were not progressing and we therefore have
made the same assumption in our forecasts. Our council borrowing and LGFA bond issuance

New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited / 7 77 77 7
Auckland Level 5, Walker Wayland Centre, 53 Fort Street
Wellington Level 8, City Chambers, 142 Featherston Street

PC Box 5704, Lambton Quay, Wellington 6145 | Phone +64 4 974 6530
Igfa.co.nz
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forecasts in the 2023/24 and 2024/25 financial years may change depending upon whether
the reforms proceed and how councils change their borrowing behaviour in response to
those reforms. We estimate that we could have between $4 billion and $5 billion of Three
Waters related loans by 1 July 2024,

e Our forecasts for council loans (short and long term) outstanding as at June 2023 of $14.6
billion and $15.6 billion as at June 2024 are in line with the forecast in last year’s SOI.

e Compared to the prior year SOI, Net Interest Income is forecast to be $200k lower in the
2022/23 financial year and $300k higher in the 2023/24 financial year. A positive impact on
Net Interest Income from higher interest rates is offset by the expectation of tighter lending
margins.

e Compared to the prior year SOI, issuance and operating expenses, excluding Approved Issuer
Levy are forecast to be approximately $400k higher in the 2022/23 financial year and $500k
higher in the 2023/24 financial year. This is due to higher costs associated with our increased
focus on Sustainability, higher personnel costs and expected costs relating to Three Waters
Reform.

* The SOI performance targets are the same as the targets in the prior year SOl except we have
included targets relating to improving sustainability outcomes within LGFA and assisting the
sector in achieving sustainability and climate change objectives.

e Asnoted above, there is some timing uncertainty within the SOl forecast relating to council
loans and LGFA bonds outstanding as we need to project both the repayment amount and
repayment timing of the council loans that are due to mature in April 2023, April 2024 and
April 2025. Decisions made by our council members regarding early refinancing will have a
phasing impact across all three years in the SOI forecast.

If you have any questions or wish to provide comments by 1 May 2022 then please feel free to
contact myself or any member of the Shareholders’ Council. The LGFA board will consider any
feedback received and provide a final version of the SOI to shareholders by 30 June 2022.

Yours sincerely
—T
i =AL

Mark Butcher
Chief Executive

Item 8.1 - Appendix 1
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New Zealand Loca
Government Funding Agency
Te POtea Kawanatanga a-rohe

Statement of Intent

2022 - 2025 // DRAFT
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1. Introduction

This Statement of Intent (SOI) sets out the nature and scope of the activities, objectives and performance targets for
the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited {LGFA) for the three-year period 1July 2022 1o 30 June 2025.

LGFA is enabled under the Local Government Borrowing Act 201 and is @ council-controlied organisation (CCO) for the
purposes of the Local Government Act 2002.

The SOI is prepared in accordance with section 64(1) of the Local Government Act 2002.

2. Nature and scope of activities

LGFA raises debt funding for the purpose of providing debt financing to New Zealand local authorities and CCOs

(participating borrowers)

LGFA may raise debt funding either domestcally and/or offshore in either NZ dollars or foreign currency.

LGFA only lends to participating borrowers that have entered into required relevant legal and operational
arrangements and comply with the LGFA’s lending policies.

In addition. LGFA may undertake any other activiies considered by the LGFA Board 10 be reasonably related,
incidentally to. or in connection with, that business.

3. Our purpose Ta tatou kaupapa

Benefiting local communities through delivering efficient financing for

local government.

Ka whiwhi painga nga hapori ma te whakarato putea tétika ki nga kaunihera.

4, Our values © matauv vara

We are

- We strive for

We act with : . - We provide We are
integrity . customer - excellence - leadership innovative

. focused : ’ £ .
E pono ana ; . Ewhakapav : He kaiarahi He auaha
matau : Earotahi ana . kaha matau kia | matau matau

. matau ki te ¢ hiranga te mahi !

: kiritaki : :
We are honest, i Ourcustomers | We stive 10 excel We are here for To meet our ever-
transparent and are i are our council | by delivenng our stakeholders in changing customer

committed to doing
what is best for our
customers and our

borrowers, Investors,

and all other
organisations that

financial products

i and services that
i are highly valued

being strategically
minded, providing
resilience and

requirements, we
will encourage
innovation and

company we deal with. We : atleast cost while execuung our provide a diverse
i listen 1o them and | seeking conunuous strategy. We range of financial
i actin their best : improvement in embrace a high- products and
i Interests to deliver | everything we do. performance culture : services.

results that make a

i positive difference

Statement of Intent #/ 2022 - 2025 // Draft

and can be relied
upon 1o deliver
results

02
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5. Foundation objectives

The Sharehoiders’ Agreement is a foundation document and states that. in accordance with the Local Government
AcCt, in carrying on its business the objectives of the Company will be to:

(a) achieve the objectives of the Sharehoiders (both commercial and non-commercial) as specified in the Statement of
Intent. The Shareholders agree that the Company shall carry on its business with a view 1o making a profit sufficient
to pay a dividend in accordance with the Dividend Policy. but that the primary objective of the Shareholders with
respect to the Company is that it optimises the terms and conditions of the debt funding it provides to Participating
Local Authorities:;

(b) be a good employer:

(c) exhibit a sense of social and environmental responsibility by having regard 10 the interests of the community in
which it operates and by endeavouring to accommodate or encourage these when able 1o do so: and

(d) conduct its affairs in accordance with sound business practice.

This Statement of Intent sets out the company’'s strategic priorties, together with associated objectives and
performance targets, which align with the foundation objectives and have been agreed with shareholders.

6. Strategic priorities

The following five strategic prorities encompass the foundation objectives and guide the LGFA Board and
management in determining our strotegy. objectives and associated performance targets.

Governance, capability and business practice

LGFA is committed demonstrating best practice corporate govemance underpinned by sound business practice
1O ensure Its iong-term sustainability and success.

Optimising financing services for local government

LGFA’'s primary objective is to optimise the terms and conditons of the debt funding it provides 1o participating
borrowers. Amongst other things, LGFA will achieve this by delivering operotional best practice and efficiency across
our lending products and services

Environmental and social responsibility

LGFA recognises the risks inherent in climate change for councils and supports New Zealand's shift to a low-carbon
economy. LGFA will exhibit a sense of social and environmental responsibility by having regard to the interests of the
community in which it operates and by endeavouring 10 accommaodate or encourage these when abie 1o do so.

Effective management of loans

LGFA will ensure Its loan book remains at @ high standard by ensunng it understands each participating borrower's
financial position and managing assets within an appropriate risk management framework 10 ensure shareholder
value is not compromised.

Industry leadership and engagement

LGFA will take a proactive role to enhance the financial strength and depth of the local government debt market
and will work with key central govemment and local government stakeholders on sector issues.

7. Objectives and performance targets
This section sets out LGFA's objectives and performance targets for SOI 2022-2025.

The financial performance targets are focused on the 2022-2023 year and, as applicable, are based on the financial
forecasts outlined in section 8.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft 03
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Governance, capability and business practice

Objectives How we measure our performance

LGFA wil:

Demonstrate best practice
corporate governance.

The Annual Report outlines our compliance with the eight core principles
underpinning the NZX Corporate Govemance Best Practice Code.

Set and model high standards
of ethical behaviour.

LGFA has adopted a formal Code of Ethics, incorporating its Conflicts of
Interest and Code of Conduct policies, which sets out the standards and
values that directors and employees are expected 1o follow.

Achieve the shareholder-agreed
objectives and performance targets
specified in this Statement of Intent.

LGFA reports performance against objectives quarterly to shareholders
and in our Annual Report,

Ensure products and services offered
to participating borrowers are
delivered in a cost-effective manner.

LGFA prepares annual operating budgets and monitors progress against
these monthly. Financial performance is reported quarterly to shareholders
and in our Annual Report,

Be a good employer by providing
safe working conditions, training and
development and equal opportuniues
for staff.

The Annual Repor reports on our health and safety and wellbeing practices
and policies. including Covid-related safety processes, compliance with the
Health and Safety at Work Act, diversity and inclusion and capability and
development

Performance targets

Comply with the Shareholder Foundation Polices and the Board-approved Treasury Policy

at all tumes.

2022-2023 target

NoO breaches

Maintain LGFA's credit rating equal to the New Zealand Government sovergign roting
where both entities are rated by the same Raung Agency.

LGFA credit ratings
equivalent to NZ

Sovereign.
LGFA’s total operating income for the period 1o 30 June 2023, > S18. 3 million
LGFA’s total operating expenses for the penod 1o 30 June 2023 < $8.3 million

Optimising financing services for local government

Objectives How we measure our performance

LGFA will:

Provide interest cost savings relative
to alternative sources of financing.

Measure LGFA issuance spreads against other high grade issuers in the
New Zealand domestc Capital markets.

Offer flexible short and long-term
lending products that meet the
borrowing requirements for borrowers.

Measure LGFA's share of overall council borrowing.
Survey participating borrowers on an annual basis.

Deliver operational best practice and
efficiency for lending services.

Monitor settiements errors for new trades and cashfliows.
Survey participating borrowers on an annual basis.

Ensure certainty of access 1o debt
markets, subject always to operating
in accordance with sound business
practice.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft

Maintain avibrant primary and secondary market in LGFA bonds. Monitor
participation by investors at our tenders through bid-coverage ratios
and successful issuance yield ranges.

Item 8.1 - Appendix 1
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Performance targets

2022-2023 target

Share of aggregate long-term debt funding to the Local Government sector.

> 80%

Total lending to Participating Borrowers.

> §14,558 million

Conduct an annual survey of Participating Borrowers who bomrow from LGFA as to the

> 85% satisfaction score

value added by LGFA to the borrowing acuvities.

Successfully refinance existing loans to councils and LGFA bond maturities as they fall 100%
due.
Meet all lending requests from Participating Borrowers, where those requests meet LGFA 100%

operational and covenant requirements.

Environmental and social responsibility

Objectives

LGFA will:

How we measure our performance

Assist the local govemment sector
In achieving their sustainability and
climate change objectves.

LGFA is committed to assist borrowers financing of projects that promote
environmental and social wellbeing in New Zealand. Green, Social & Sustainability
(GSS) loan applications from councils are appraised by the LGFA Sustainability
Committee, with approved Ioans monitored for ongoing compliance,

Improve sustainability outcomes
within LGFA,

LGFA s commitied 1o reducing our carbon emissions and formalised
processes 10 measure our greenhouse gos (GHG) emissions, as well as
management plans 1o reduce our cCompany’s emissions.

Performance targets

Comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015

2022-2023 target

NoO breaches

Maintain Toith Carbon Zero ceruficauon

Carbon-zero
certification maintained,

Meet reduction targets outlined in our carbon reduction management plan.

Reduction targets met.

Increase our GSS lending book

Two new participating
porrowers enter into GSS

loans.
Ensure Annual Report is prepared in compliance with applicable GRI Standards. 100%
Meet all mandatory climate reporung standards. 100%

Effective management of loans

Objectives

How we measure our performance

LGFA will:

Proactively monitor and review each
Partcipating Borrower's financial
position, including its financial
headroom under LGFA policies.

Analyse finances at the Council group
level where appropriate and report to
shareholders.

LGFA reviews all participating councils and CCOs financial statements on
an annual basis and the agendas and management reports on an ongoing
basis for all councils on the LGFA bomrower watch-list.

Participating borrowers are required to complete annual compliance
certificates by the end of November each year.

Endeavour to meet each participating
pborrower annually, including meeting

with elected officials as required, or if

requested.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft

Number of parucipating borrowers visited in a year.
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Performance targets 2022-2023 target

Review each Participating Borrower's financial position, its headroom under LGFA policies.  100%

Arrange to meet each Participating Borrower at least annually, including meeting with 100%
elected officials as required, or if requested.

7. Industry leadership and engagement

Objectives How we measure our performance
LGFA will:
Take a proactive role to enhance the financial strength Report on actions undertaken and progress made on
and depth of the local government debt market and Seclor issues.

work with key central govemment and local govemment
stakeholders on sector and individual council iIssues.

Assist the local govemment sector with significant
matters such as COVID -19 response and the proposed
Three Waters Reform Programme.

Support councils and CCOs in the development of
reporting disclosures of the iImpacts of sector actvity on
climate change.

8. Financial forecasts

LGFA's financial forecasts for the three years 1o 30 June 2025 are:

Comprehensive income Sm Jun 23 Jun 24 Jun 25
Net Interest income 16.8 18.4 172
Other operating income 1.5 15 1.5
Total operating income 18.3 199 18.7
Approved Issuer Levy 08 03 0.3
Issuance & onlending costs 29 3.0 31
Operating overhead 47 49 52
Issuance and operating expenses 8.4 8.3 8.6
Net profit 99 nz 10.0

Financial position (nominals) Sm

Liquid assets portfolio 1912 2033 2,230
Loans to local govemment 14,558 15,567 16,270
Other assets - - -
;I'Otc:ll assets 16,470 17,599 18,500 .
Bonds on issue (ex Treasury stock) 15,335 16,407 17,258
Bills on issue 500 500 500
Borrower notes 303 339 369

Other liabilities - - -

Total liabilities 16,138 17,246 18,127
Capital 25 25 25
Retained earnings 92 103 n3
Shareholder equity nz 128 138
Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft 06
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Ratios Jun 23 Jun 24 Jun 25
Liquid assets/funding liabilities 122% 2% 127%
uquid assets / total assets 6% N.6% 121%
Net interest margin 012% 012% 0Nn%
Cost toincome ratio 459% 41.5% 46.3%
Retum on average assets 0.06% 007% 005%
Shareholder equity/total assets 0.7% 07% 0.7%
Shareholder equity + BN/total assets 25% 27% 27%
Asset growth 65% 69% 51%
Loan growth 85% 69% 4.5%
Retum on equity 93% 100% 78%
Capital ratio 12.7% 13.3% 13.7%

Note there is a level of uncertainty regarding the June 2024 and June 2025 financial years forecasts due 1o the
uncertainty relating to the Three waters Reform and the impact on councils.

Councils prepared their 2021-31 Long Term Plans {and borrowing forecasts) on the assumption that Three Water Reform
was not progressing and we have made the same assumption with our forecasts. LGFA projects it could have between
$4 10 S5 billion of loans to councils In June 2024 thot are related 1o Three Waters. There have been no decisions made 1o
date regarding the transfer of assets and habilities from councils 1o the proposed Three Water entities.

9. Dividend policy

LGFA primary objective is 1o maximise benefits 1o paricipating borrowers rather than shareholiders. Consequently,
Itis intended 1o pay a limited dividend 10 shareholders

The Board's policy is 1o pay a dividend that provides an annual rate of retum 1o shareholders equal 1o LGFA fixed rate
bond cost of funds plus 2.00% over the medium term.

Atall imes payment of any dividend will be discretionary and subject 1o the Board's legal obligations and views
on appropriate capital structure.

10. Governance

Board

The Board is responsible for the strategic direction and control of LGFA'S activities. The Board guides and monitors the
business and affairs of LGFA, in accordance with the Companies Act 1993, the Local Government Act 2002, the Local
Govermnment Borrowing Act 2011, the Company’s Constitution, the Shareholders Agreement for LGFA and this SOI.

The Board comprises six directors with five being independent directors and one being a non-independent director.
The Board's approach 1o governance is 1o adopt best practice with respect to:

« The operation of the Board.

« The performance of the Board.

« Managing the relationship with the Company’'s Chief Executive.

« Being accountable to all Shareholders.

All directors are required to comply with a formal Charter.

The Board will meet on a regular basis and no fewer than six times each year.

Shareholders’ Council

The Shareholders’ Council is made up of between five and ten appointees of the Shareholders {including an appointee
from the Crown). The role of the Shareholders Council is 10:

« Review the performance of LGFA and the Board, and report 1o Shareholders on that performance on a periodic basis.

« Make recommendations 1o Shareholders as 1o the appointment, removal, repiacement and remuneration
of directors.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft 07
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« Make recommendations to Shareholders as 1o any changes to policies, or the SOI, requiring their approval.
« Ensure all Shareholders are fully informed on LGFA matters and to coordinate Shareholders on govemance decisions.

11. Information to be provided to Shareholders

The Board aims to ensure that Shareholders are informed of all major developments affecting LGFA's state of affairs,
while at the same time recognising both LGFA's obligations under NZX Listing Rules and that commercial sensitivity
may preclude certain information from being made public.

Annual Report
The LGFA's balance date is 30 June.

By 30 September each year, the Company will produce an Annual Report complying with Sections 67, 68 and 69 of the
Local Govemment Act 2002, the Companies Act 1993 and Financial Reporting Act 2013. The Annual Report will contain
the information necessary to enable an informed assessment of the operations of the company, and will include

the following information:

« Directors Report,

« Financial Statements incorporating a Statement of Financial Performance. Statement of Movements in Equity.
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Cashflows, Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts.

« Comparison of the LGFA's performance regarding the objectves and performance targets set outin the SOI,
with an explanation of any matenal variances.

« Auditor's Report on the financial statements and the performance targets.
« Any other informaton that the directors consider appropriate.

Half Yearly Report

By 28 February each year. the Company will produce a Half Yeary Report complying with Section 66 of the Local
Govermment Act 2002 The Half Yearly Report will include the following information:

« Directors commentary on operations for the relevant six-month period.

« Un-audited half-yeary Financial Statements incorporating a Statement of Financial Performance, Statement
of Movements in Equity. Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cashflows,

Quarterly Report

By 31 January. 30 April, 31 July. and 31 October each year, the Company will produce a Quarterly Report.
The Quarterly Report will include the following informaton:

« Commentary on operations for the relevant quarter, including @ summary of borrowing margins charged
to Participating Borrower’s (in credit raung bands).

« Comparison of LGFA's performance regarding the objectives and performance targets set out in the SOI,
with an explanation of any material variances.

« Analysis of the weighted average maturity of LGFA bonds outstanding.

+ Inthe December Quarterly Report only. commentary on the Net Debt/Total Revenue percentage for each
Participating Local Authority that has borrowed from LGFA (as ot the end of the preceding financial year).

+ Tothe extent known by LGFA, details of all events of review in respect of any Participating Borrower that occurred
during the relevant quarter (including steps taken, or proposed o be taken, by LGFA in relation thereto).

« Details of any lending to CCOs during the quarter and the amount of CCO loans outstanding.
« Commentary on sustainability initiatives.

Statement of Intent

By 1March in each year the Company will deliver to the Shareholders its draft SOI for the following year in the form
required by Clause 9(1) of Schedule 8 and Section 64(1) of the Local Government Act 2002.

Having considered any comments from the Shareholders received by 30 April, the Board will deliver the completed SOI
to the Shareholders on or before 30 June each year.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft 08
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Shareholder Meetings

The Board will hold an Annual General Meeting between 30 September and 30 November each year to present the
Annual Report to all Shareholders.

The Company will hold a meeting with the Sharehoiders’ Council approximately every six months - prior to the Annual
General Meeting and after the Half Yearly Report has been submitted. Other meetings may be held by agreement
between the Board and the Sharehoiders Council.

12. Acquisition/divestment policy

LGFA will invest in securities in the ordinary course of business. It is expected that these securities will be debt securities.
These investments will be governed by LGFA's lending and/or investment policies as approved by the Board and/or
Shareholders.

Any subscription, purchase or acquisition by LGFA of shares in 0 company or organisation will, if not within those
investment policies, require Shareholder approval other than as concerns the formation of wholly-owned subsidiaries
and the subscription of shares in such wholly-owned subsidiories.

13. Activities for which compensation is sought from Shareholders

At the request of Shareholders, LGFA may (ot 11s discretion) undertoke activities that are not consistent with its normal
commercial objectives. Specific financial arrangements will be entered into to meet the full cost of providing such
activities,

Currently there are no activities for which compensation will be sought from Shareholders.

14. Commercial value of Shareholder’s investment

LGFA will seek to maximise benefits 1o Participatng Local Authonties as Borrowers rather than Sharenolders.

Subject to the Board's views on the appropnate capital structure for LGFA, the Board's intenton will be 1o pay a
dividend that provides an annual rate of retum 10 Principal Shareholders equal 1o LGFA fixed rate bond cost of funds
plus 200% over the medium term

As the Shareholders will have invested in the LGFA on the basis of this Iimited dividend, the Board considered that at
establishment the commercial value of LGFA was equal 1o the face value of the Sharehoiders paid up Principal Shares
- $25 million,

In the absence of any subsequent share transfers 10 the observed share ransfers on 30 November 2012, the Board
considers the current commercial value of LGFA 1S atleast equal 10 the face value of the Shareholders paid up
Principal Shares of $25 million. This equates o a value per share of $1.00

15. Accounting policies

LGFA has adopted accounting policies that are in accordance with the New Zeakand Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards and generally accepted accounting practice. A Statement of accounting policies is attached to this SOI.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft 09

Item 8.1 - Appendix 1 Page 19



STRATEGY AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 12 MAY 2022

Statement of accounting policies

1. Reporting entity
The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA) is a company registered under the Companies Act
1993 and is subject to the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 2002

LGFA is a council-controlled organisation as defined under section 6 of the Local Government Act 2002. LGFAIs a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand.

The primary objective of LGFA is to optimise the debt funding terms and conditions for participating borrowers.
The registered address of LGFA is Level 8 City Chambers, 142 Featherston Street, Wellington Central, Wellington 6011,
The financial statements are as at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 30 August 2021.

2. Sstatement of compliance

LGFA is an FMC reporting entity under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 (FMCA). These financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with that Act and the Financial Reporting Act 2013. LGFA'S bonds are quoted on the NZX
Debt Market.

LGFA is a profit orientated entty as defined under the New Zealand Equivalents to Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (NZ IFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (NZ GAAP) and they comply with NZ IFRS and other applicable Financial Reporting Standard, as appropriate
for Tier 1 for-profit entities. The financial statements alsoc comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

3. Basis of preparation

Measurement base

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis modified by the revaluation of certain assets
and liabilities.

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand doliars rounded [0 the nearest thousand, unless separately
identified. The functonal currency of LGFA is New Zealand dollars.

Foreign currency conversions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are transiated into New Zealand dollars using exchange rates applied
on the trade date of the transaction.

Changes in accounting policies

LGFA does not consider any standards or Interpretations on issue but not yet effective 1o have a significantimpact on
its financial statements.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets, other than derivatives, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand: cash in transit and bank accounts and deposits with an original
maturity of no more than three months.

Purchases and sales of all financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

At each balance date, an expected credit loss assessment is performed for all financial assets and is calculated as
either:

Creditlosses that may arise from default events that are possible within the next 12 months, where no significant
increase in credit risk has ansen since acquisition of the asset, or

Credit losses that may arise from default events that are possible over the expected life of the financial asset, where
a significant increase in credit risk has arisen since acquisiton of the asset.

Statement of Intent // 2022 - 2025 // Draft 10
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Impairment losses on financial assets will ordinarily be recognised on initial recognition as a 12-month expected loss
allowance and move to a lifetime expected loss allowance if there is a significant detenoration in credit risk since
acquisition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than derivatives, are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments are recognised both initially and subsequently at fair value. They are reported as either
assets or liabilites depending on whether the denvative is in @ net gain or net 10ss positon respectively.

Fairvalue hedge

Where a derivative qualifies as a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or liability (fair value
hedge) any gain or 10ss on the derivative is recognised in profit and 10ss together with any changes in the fair value of
the hedged asset or liability.

The carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the fair value gain or 10ss on the hedged item in respect of the
risk being hedged. Effective parts of the hedge are recognised in the same area of profit and loss as the hedged item.

Other assets

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis ot rates calculated 1o allocate the cost or valuation of an item of
property. plant and equipment. less any estimated residual value, over its remaining useful life,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise software and project costs incurred for the implementaton of the treasury management
system. Capitalised computer software costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
software (three 1o seven years). Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as expenses.

Other liabilities

Employee entitiements

Employee entitiements to salaries and wages, annual leave and other similar benefits are recognised in the profit and
loss when they accrue to employees.

Revenue

Interestincome
Interest income is accrued using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts esumated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount The method applies this rate 1o the prncipal outstanding to determine
interest income each period.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised in the period 1o which they relate.

Interest expense
Interest expense is accrued using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts esumated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability to that liability’s net carrying amount. The method applies this rate to the principal outstanding to determine
interest expense each period.

Income tax
LGFA is exempt from income tax under Section 14 of the Local Govemnment Borrowing Act 2011.

Goods and services tax

Allitems in the financial statements are presented exclusive of goods and service tax (GST), except for receivables
and payables, which are presented on a GST-inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax, thenitis
recognised as part of the related asset or expense.
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The net amount of GST recoverable from. or payable to. the IRD is included as part of receivables or payables in the
statement of financial position.

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is
classified as a net operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

Segment reporting
LGFA operates in one segment being funding of participating borrowers in New Zealand.

Judgements and estimations

The preparation of these financial statements requires judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts. For example, the fair value of financial instruments depends critically on
judgements regarding future cash flows, including inflation assumptions and the risk-free discount rate.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and various other factors that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates and these
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Where these judgements significantly affect
the amounts recognised in the financial statements they are descrnbed in the following notes.

The financial statements as at 30 June 2021 include estimates and judgements of the potential impact of COVID-19 and
the Three Waters Reform Programme on LGFA's financial position and performance. Whilst there has been no material
impact on the estimates and judgements at the date these financial statements are authorised, it is noted that there is
significant uncertainty with regards o the medium and long-term effects of COVID-19. as well as the outcome of Three
Waters Reform Programme on the local government sector.
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LGFA

New Zealand Local
Government Funding Agency

Te PUtea KGwanatanga a-rohe

28 February 2022
Dear LGFA Stakeholder
LGFA 2021-22 Half Year Report

Please find attached a copy of the Half Year Report for the six-month period to December 2021. A
copy is also available for download on our website www.lgfa.co.nz.

We are pleased to highlight another positive six-month period for LGFA including the following

1. Increased lending to council and CCO borrowers
By 31 December 2021, LGFA had a market value of loans outstanding of $13.51 billion. We
lent $1.64 billion over the six-month period, and we added two new council members to
bring the number of member councils to seventy-four. Councils and CCOs can borrow for
terms out to fifteen years (2037).

2. New products
As well as providing long dated lending at the lowest possible cost, we continue to innovate
with new products. We have undertaken our first loan to a CCO with Invercargill City
Holdings borrowing from LGFA in July 2021 and we entered into our first Green, Social and
Sustainable (GSS) loans.

3. A focus on sustainability
During the six-month period we launched GSS loans to councils where councils receive a
discounted borrowing margin for eligible projects. In December 2021 both Wellington City
and Greater Wellington Regional Councils were the first councils to borrow under the GSS
loan programme.

Sustainability is becoming increasingly important at LGFA as we look to assist the sectorin
managing climate change and encouraging sustainable outcomes. We have appointed a
Sustainability Committee to advise the board and management as part of this initiative and
we will look to actively engage with councils and CCOs in the coming months.

4. A strong financial position
The financial strength of LGFA has been enhanced with a Net Operating Profit for the six-
month period of $5.94 million. LGFA has $16.36 billion of assets and Shareholder Equity of
$99.82 million as at 31 December 2021.

New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited 77 7 00
Auckland Level 5, Walker Wayland Centre, 53 Fort Street ; /
Wellington Level 8, City Chambers, 142 Featherston Street

PC Box 5704, Lambton Quay, Wellington 6145 | Phone +64 4 974 6530

Igfa.co.nz
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Finally, we appreciate the support of all our stakeholders during these difficult times for the sector so
thank you for your contribution and assistance over the past six months.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any comments or questions.

Kind regards
—

Mo AL

Mark Butcher
Chief Executive
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Message from the Chair
and Chief Executive

Forthe six-months ended 31 December 2021

The six-month period to December was another strong period for LGFA in delivering value to
council members and our investor base while meeting our financial targets. A key highlight
was our first Green, Social and Sustainable loans to councils as part of our focus on
fostering sustainability across the local government sector.

We are pleased to record another penod of positive
performance by the company for the six-month
period to 31 December 2021 and to highlight the
following developments.

Strong Financial and Operational
Performance

LGFA's total interest income for the six-month period
of $185.89 million was a 2.4% decrease over the
2019-20 comparable period result of $190.38 million,
while net operating profit of $5.94 million for the
six-month period was a 0.3% increase on the 2019-20
comparable period result of $592 million.

Both netinterest income and operating profit were
slightly ahead of the Statement of Intent (SOI)
forecast. We are adopting a prudent approach

to our funding by borrowing a greater amount
than we are lending to councils and for a longer
term. This is having a modest drag on profitability
despite the growth in the balance sheet butis a
more conservative approach to balance sheet
management.

04 LGFAHalf Year Report 2021 Message from the Chairand Chief Executive

Expenses have been managed below the SOI
budget over the past six months. Lower fees paid
due to a reduced limit of the New Zealand Debt
Management committed credit facility and
lower travel and accommodation costs relative
1o forecast were positive contributions. These
savings were offset by higher legal and NZX costs
associated with increased council lending and
LGFA bond issuance.

LGFA bonds are an attractive investment for
investors while delivering savings in borrowing
costs for members. Over the last six months, we
have launched Green, Social and Sustainable (GSS)
lending to councils and approved our first Council-
Controlled Organisation (CCO) borrower.

The financial strength of LGFA was reaffirmed

by Fitch Ratings who maintained our domestic
currency credit rating at ‘AA+" in October 2021 while
our ‘AAA rating from S&P Global Ratings remains the
same as the New Zealand Government.
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Borrowing activity

LGFA is the largest issuer of New Zealand dollar
(NZD) securities after the New Zealand Government
and our bonds are amongst the largest and most
liquid NZD debt instruments available for investors.
Itis pleasing to note increased activity in the
secondary market in our bonds.

LGFA issued $2.06 billion of bonds over the past Six
months and outstandings now total $1594 billion
(including $1.20 billion of treasury stock) across 12
maturities from 2022 to 2037. The average term of
our bond issuance during the six-month period

at 7.7 years was longer than the prior year period.
The debut of new May 2028 and May 2035 bond
maturities by syndication helped fill in the gaps
between our existing bonds and provided investors
with more investment opportunities. It also reduced
our mismatch exposure between bond issuance
and council lending.

Itis also pleasing to observe the increased
participation by offshore investors over the past

six months as NZD-denominated investments have
become relatively more attractive for investors as
the Reserve Bank commenced monetary policy
tightening. We estimate that offshore investors hold
29.7% of LGFA bonds on issue compared to 21.6% a
year ago. Domestic institutional and retail investors
hold 32.4%, domestic banks hold 26.7% and the
Reserve Bank holds 11.3%.

The performance of LGFA bonds over the past six
months has been mixed with LGFA bond spreads
to New Zealand Government Bonds moving wider
while LGFA bond spreads to swap have tightened
slightly, except in the very long end of the curve.
QOutright yields rose between 53 basis points (bps)
(2037 maturity) and 127 bps (2024 maturity) over the
six-month period.

Lending to the sector

LGFA was established in December 2011 to provide
long-dated borrowing, certainty of access to
markets and to reduce the borrowing costs

for the local government sector. The original 31
shareholders including the Crown remain as
shareholders. Over the past six months, we added
two councils and our first CCO as members, with
Southland District and Otago Regional Councils
joining as guarantors and Invercargill City Holdings
Ltd joining as our first CCO. Total membership is
now 74 out of the 78 councils in New Zealand.

Long-dated lending to council and CCO members
over the six-month period was $1.64 billion provided
to 46 councils as they refinanced their April 2022
loans and increased their borrowing to finance
infrastructure projects. Our estimated market share
of total council borrowing of 79% was slightly lower

than forecast but remained high on an historical
basis. The average tenor of long-dated bomrowing
by councils of 5.8 years over the six-month period
was in line with prior periods.

Short-dated lending for terms less than 12 months
continues to be supported by councils and as at 31
December 2021, LGFA had $382 million of short-term
loans outstanding to 31 council and CCO members.

The impact from COVID-19 and Three
Waters Reform Program on the sector
and LGFA

The local government sector continues to face
unprecedented and uncertain change having to
deal with climate-related events, COVID-19, the
Central Government-led initiatives relating to the
Three Waters Reform Programme and Future for
Local Government Review.

LGFA is assisting on an as required basis, both
Central Government and our council members

as they work through the Three Waters Reform
Programme as required. The Government's
proposed Three Water Reform Programme would be
the largest change to the local authority sector in
30 years.

LGFA is also assisting the local government sector
led initiative in developing a Ratepayer Financing
Scheme that may provide some financial relief to
ratepayers.

New products and initiatives

We undertook our first loan to a CCO in July 2021
and are looking to approve our second CCO
member in the next six months.

We launched our GSS lending product in October
2021 and are pleased to have made our first GSS
loans to Wellington City and Greater Wellington
Regional Councils in December 2021.

Increasing focus on sustainability

Sustainability plays an important part within the
local government sector and at LGFA. We have
undertaken several initiatives over the past year,
including:

+ Appointment of a Head of Sustainability.

+ Establishment of a Sustainability Committee
that advises the LGFA Board and management
team on sustainability issues.

+ Achievement of CarbonZero certification from
Toitw Envirocare and we have committed to
reducing our carbon emissions.

+ Launched our GSS lending product that offers a
lower borrowing margin for councils with eligible

Message from the Chair and Chief Executive LGFA Half Year Report 2021 05
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projects. We have pre-approved borrowing for
eligible projects of $407 million and have made
loans to date of $43 million.

Acknowledgments

LGFA's work cannot be implemented without

the support of our staff, directors, shareholders
and members, New Zealand Debt Management
(NZDM), the Reserve Bank and central and

local government, all whose efforts should be
acknowledged. We aiso would like to acknowledge
the support of financial institutions, intermediaries
and investors. We believe LGFA's future remains
positive and look forward to working with all
stakeholders in the next six months.
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Craig Stobo Mark Butcher

Chair Chief Executive
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Performance
against objectives

The statement of service performance details LGFA's performance for the first haif of the
year against the objectives and targets set out in the LGFA Statement of Intent 2021-22 (SOI)

2021-22 Performance objectives

The SOI sets out two primary performance objectives and eight additional objectives for the year ended

30 June 2022.

Primary objectives

LGFA will optimise the debt funding terms and LGFA will ensure its asset book remains at a

conditions for Participating Borrowers. Among high standard by ensuring it understands each

other things, this includes: Participating Borrower's financial position, as well

«  Providing interest cost savings relative © as general issues confronting the local govemment
alternative sources of financing: sector. Amongst other things, LGFA will:

. Offering flexible short and long-term lending + Proactively monitor and review each
products that meet Participating Borrowers’ Participating Borrower's financial position,
borrowing requirements; including its financial headroom under LGFA

policies;

« Delivering operational best practice and

efficiency for its lending services: + Analyse finances at the Council group level

- Ensuring certainty of access to debt markets. where appropriate and report to sharehoiders;
subject always to operating in accordance + Endeavour to meet each Participating Borrower
with sound business practice. annually, including meeting with elected

officials as required, or if requested; and

+ Take aproactive role to enhance the financial
strength and depth of the local government
debt market and work with key central
government and local government stakeholders
on sector and individual council issues.

8 LGFAHalf Year Report 2021 Performance against objectives
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Additional objectives

LGFA has the following eight measurable

and achievable additional objectives which

complement the primary objectives. Performance

against these objectives is reported annually.

LGFA will:

1. Maintain LGFA's credit rating equal o the New
Zealand Government sovereign rating where
both entities are rated by the same Rating
Agency.

2. Provide at least 80% of aggregate long-term
debt funding to the local government sector.

3. Achieve the financial forecasts for net interest
income and operating expenses, including
provision for a shareholder dividend payment in
accordance with the approved dividend policy.

4. Meet or exceed the Performance Targets.

5. Comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act
2015.

6. Comply with the Shareholder Foundation
Policies and the Board-approved Treasury
Policy at all times.

7. Assist the local government sector with

significant matters such as COVID -19 response
and the proposed Three Waters Reform
Programme.

8. Improve sustainability outcomes within LGFA

and assist the local govemment sector in
achieving their sustainability and climate
change objectives.

Performance against primary objectives

This section sets out LGFA's performance forthe
six months ended 31 December 2021 against the
two primary objectives set out in the SOI.

LGFA will optimise the debt funding terms and
conditions for Participating Borrowers. Among
other things, this includes:

Providing interest cost savings relative to
alternative sources of financing

LGFA continues to borrow at very competitive
spreads compared to the AAA rated Sovereign,
Supranational and Agencies (SSA) issuers who borrow
in the New Zealand debt capital markets, the domestic
banks and Kainga Ora, our closest peer issuer.

Secondary market spread to swap (basis points)

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2033 2035 2037

LGFA (AAA) (4) m m 3 10 13 23 25 28 n 42 S 59
Kainga Ora (AAA) 5 n 6 25 33 47
Asian Development Bank (AAA) 1 2 7 13 23 33

IADB (AAA) 4] 1 10 15 27

International Finance Corp 1 5 10 14 18

KBN (AAA) 3 8 W 39

Rentenbank (AAA) 0 1 6 12

World Bank (AAA) 2 1 1 8 12 18 23 33

Nordic Investment Bank (AAA) 1 10

ANZ (AA-) 25 3

BNZ (AA-) 17 39 35

Westpac Bank (AA-) n 23 40 43 33

SSA Average . 1 . 1 . 4 . 10 14 18 . 24 . 3 - 36 - 33 -

Bank Average . n . 22 . 36 . 4 sS4 . . . - -

1. This includes Auckland Council borrowing both in its own name and through LGFA and recognising that the amount
of borrowing by Auckland Council from LGFA is restricted by the Foundauon Policy covenants.
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In the 2021 stakeholder survey, our members
responded with a 99% satisfaction rating for LGFA
in adding value to their borrowing requirements.

Offering flexible short and long-term lending
products that meet Participating Borrowers’
borrowing requirements;

Both short and long-term borrowing have been

well supported by member councils and CCOs:

« Overthe six months ended 31 December 2021,
46 members (45 councils, 1 CCO) borrowed $1.64
million in 125 new long-term loans, across 46
maturity dates ranging between 2022 and 2036.

« As at 31 December 2021 there were $382 million
of short-term loans outstanding 1o 31 members
(30 councils, 1 CCO) with loan terms ranging
between one month and 12 months.

« As at 31 December 2021, nine councils had
entered into Standby facilities with LGFA
totalling $522 million.

Delivering operational best practice and
efficiency for its lending services;

QOver the six months, LGFA operations successfully
settled 833 new trades and 5.600 cash flows
totalling in excess of $31billion.

In the 2021 stakeholder survey, our members
responded with a 96% satisfaction rating for the
LGFA settlement process.

Ensuring certainty of access to debt markets,
subject always to operating in accordance with
sound business practice.

For LGFA to provide certainty of access to markets
for our borrowers, we need to have a vibrant primary
and secondary market in LGFA bonds. The primary
market is the new issuance market, and we measure
strength through participation by investors at our
tenders through bid-coverage ratios and successful
issuance yield ranges. The secondary market is the
trading of LGFA bonds following issuance and a high
turnover implies a healthy market.

Activity in LGFA bonds in both the primary market
(tender or syndicated issuance) and secondary
market (between banks and investors) during

the six month period remained at high levels,
with primary issuance totalling $2.055 billion

and secondary market turnover of $4.45 billion.

In addition, we successfully launched two new
bond maturities, May 2028 and May 203S, by
syndication, reducing the gap between existing
LGFA bond maturities.

LGFA maintains an Australian Medium-Term Notes
Programme which, to date, has not been used but
which provides LGFA with additional flexibility if
there is a market disrupting event in the future.

10 LUGFAHalf Year Report 2021 Performance against objectives

LGFA will ensure its asset book remains ata

high standard by ensuring it understands each
Participating Borrower's financial position, as well
as general issues confronting the local government
sector. Amongst other things, LGFA will:

Proactively monitor and review each Participating
Borrower’s financial position, including its
financial headroom under LGFA policies;

LGFA reviews all councils’ financial statements

on an annual basis and the agendas and
management reports on an ongoing basis for
coungcils on the LGFA borrower watch-list This
year, we reviewed councils 2021-2031 Long-Term
Plans and licised directly with councils’ where we
had issues or queries arising from these.

We have received compliance certificates from all
Participating Borrowers, and all remain compliant
as at 30 June 2021. There are 14 councils who, due to
COVID-19 delays in finalising the audit process, have
provided outcomes based on unaudited financial
statements. LGFA has reviewed these financial
statements and there were no issues of concem.

Analyse finances at the Council group level where
appropriate and report to shareholders;

No council has yet requested to be measured ona
group basis.

Endeavour to meet each Participating Borrower
annually, including meeting with elected officials
as required, or if requested;

Over the six months, LGFA met with 15 councils
which is lower than planned due to COVID-19
travel restrictions over the period. Travel
permitting. we aim to increase visits in the first
half of 2022, with virtual meetings replacing
in-person meetings as required.

Take a proactive role to enhance the financial
strength and depth of the local government debt
market and work with key central government
and local government stakeholders on sector and
individual council issues.

Over the six months, LGFA met with representatives
from Central Government on the proposed Three
Waters reforms and provided feedback regarding
financing of the proposed entities.

LGFA sponsored the Taituard Funding and Rating
Forum and presented on ‘Financial Risks in the
Local Govemment Environment’ to a forum

of Council Audit and Risk Committee Chairs
organised by OAG.

LGFA continues to assist the sector and their
advisers in offering to provide support for
solutions to off-balance sheet financing for
councils. LGFA continues to provide technical
expertise to the proposed Ratepayer Financing
Scheme (RFS).
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Additional objectives

LGFA has the following eight measurable and
achievable additional objectives which complement
the primary objective. Performance against these
objectivesis reported annually. LGFA will:

Maintain LGFA’s credit rating equal to the New
Zealand Government sovereign rating where both
entities are rated by the same Rating Agency.

On an annual basis, S&P Global Ratings and Fitch
Ratings meet with LGFA and review our credit
ratings.

+ S&P Global Ratings upgraded our long-term
local currency credit rating 1o AAA and our
long-term foreign currency credit rating to AA+
on 22 February 2021. Both ratings are the same
as the New Zealand Government.

« FitchRatings affirmed both our local currency
credit rating of AA+ (stable) and foreign
currency credit rating of AA, positive outiook.

1 November 2021.

Provide at least 80% of aggregate long-term debt

funding to the local government sector?,

LGFA's estimated market share for the rolling
twelve-month period to 31 December 2021 was
79%*. Adjusted for Auckland Council borrowing,
this increases 1o 84%. This market share compares
to a historical average of 75% and remains high
compared to our giobal peers.

Achieve the financial forecasts for net interest
income and operating expenses, including
provision for a shareholder dividend payment in
accordance with the approved dividend policy.

The following table summaries income, expenses
and operating result for the six months ended 31
December 2021 against the financial forecasts
outlined in our 2021-2022 Statement of Intent.

Unaudited Variance
resuit to 31 to SOl
December budget
2021
Net interest income 9178 +267
Other operating income 526 +26
Total operating income 9704 +293
Operating expenses 3769 +88
Net operating profit 5935 +381

The Net interest income (NIl) includes the
unrealised mark-to-market movement for fixed
rate swaps that are not designated effective

for hedge accounting purposes. These swaps
reduce exposure to fixed rate loans transacted
outside of the normal tender process and reduce
mismatches between borrowing and on-lending
terms on our balance sheet. The unrealised l0ss
increases as interest rates fall but turns to a profit
if interest rates rise. Due to arise in interest rates
since June 2021, the year-to-date unrealised gain
was $1.03 million.

Operating expenses for the six-month period
were $88k below budget This variance is the
consequence of:

« Issuance and on-lending costs (excluding AlL)
at $1.308 million were S46k below budget A
lower NZDM Liquidity Facility fee was offset by
higher legal expenses and NZX fees due to the
additional amount of bond issuance.

« Operating costs at $2135 million were S48k
below budget due to lower operating
overhead, travel and IT costs offset by higher
personnel costs relative to budget

« Approved Issuer Levy (AlL) payments of $325k
were in line with budget. We pay AlL on behalf
of offshore investors at the time of semi-
annual coupon payment for a small number of
LGFA bond maturities.

Meet or exceed the Performance Targets.

As at 31 December 2021, we forecast we are on
track to achieve eight out of the 10 performance
targets by 30 June 2022.

Comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act
2015.

LGFA has a Health and Safety Staff Committee
which is chaired by the Risk and Compliance
Manager and reports to the LGFA Board on a
regular basis. There were no Health and Safety
incidents during the six months.

Over the Covid lockdown period, Auckiand and
Wellington based staff worked from home as
required and we have adopted safety protocols
to minimise risks to staff on returning to our
offices. All staff, directors and visitors are required
to hold a valid vaccine passport before entering
LGFA offices.

2. This includes Auckiand Council borrowing both in its own name and through LGFA and recognising that the amount of
borrowing by Auckland Council from LGFA is restricted by the Foundation Policy covenants.

3. Source: PwC Local Govemment Debt Report
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Comply with the Shareholder Foundation Policies
and the Board-approved Treasury Policy at all
times.

There were no compliance breaches during the six
month period.

Assist the local government sector with
significant matters such as COVID -19 response
and the proposed Three Waters Reform
Programme.

Over the six months, LGFA:

« Contributed expertise 1o the Ratepayer
Financing Scheme project that, if successful,
could offer temporary financial relief to
ratepayers via rates postponement.

+ Provided a Standby Facility product that
will provide greater certainty of access to
emergency funding for councils at a iower cost
than going to traditional bank providers. This
has been well supported by councils with $522
million of standbys written with nine councils.

« Outlined its views on the proposed Three
Waters Reform for the Shareholders Council
and this was distributed to all council
members.

Improve sustainability outcomes within LGFA

and assist the local government sector in

achieving their sustainability and climate change

objectives.

LGFA has:

« Appointed a Head of Sustainability.

+ Achieved Carbon zero certification from Toit0o
Envirocare.

The Waimakariri Riverhas beeh the site ofmany —~
recent biodiversity projects and plafiting deys. ";
Environmentganterury S

.

Established a Sustainability Committee,

comprising:

+ Three LGFA staff members and

+ Four external members - Alison Howard,
Chris Thurston, David Woods and Erica
Miles.

Launched a GSS lending programme for

council and CCO members. Projects that meet

one of 16 green or social lending categories are

now eligible for a discounted loan margin. As

at December 2021, Wellington City (WCC) and

Greater Wellington Regional (GWRC) Councils

have borrowed under this programme

+  WCC financed the construction of Taking’,
the Wellington Convention and Exhibition
Centre.

+  GWRC financed the flood protection work
on the RiverLink project in the Hutt Valley.
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Performance Targets
Performance measure Result for the sixmonth Outcome
period to 31 December 2021

LGFA net interest income for the period to June 2022 willbe  $97m
greater than $19.1 million

Annual issuance and operating expenses (excluding AlL) $34m
will be less than $7.2 million

Total nominal lending (short and long term) to $13.513 million

participating councils to be atleast $13,294 million

Conduct an annual survey of councils and achieve 85% August 2021 survey outcome
satisfaction score as to the value added by LGFAto council  of 99.2%

borrowing activities

Meet all lending requests from PLAS 100%

Achieve 80% market share of all council borrowing in New  79%
Zealand

X X|I&§| KKK

Review each Participating Borrower's financial position,its ~ Council meetings to total 74
headroom under LGFA policies and arrange tomeet each  overyear. Financial position

Participating Borrower at least annually and headroom review
completed.
No breaches of Treasury Policy, any regulatory or No breaches 0/
legisiative requirements including the Health and Safety at
Work Act 2015
Successfully refinance of existing loans to councils and 100% J

LGFA bond maturities as they fall due

Maintain a credit rating equal 1o the New Zealand AA+/AAA
Govemment rating where both entities are rated by the
same credit rating entity

A S
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Financial statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income ..... 15 Capital and dividends 28
Statement of Changes to EQuity ............. 15 16 Share capital 28
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. . 18. Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flow
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1. Reporting entity....... 18 19. Related parties 30
2. Statement of COMPHANCE ... 18
3. Basis of preparation 18
Revenue and expenditure ... 20
4. Netinterest income 20
5. Other operating income. 20
6. Operating expenses 2
7. Hedge accounting. 2
8 Loans 23
9. Otherassets 25
10. Payables and provisions 25
. Bills 25
12. Treasury stock and bond repurchases............. 26
13. Bonds 27
14. Borrower notes......... 28
15. Other liabilities.......... 28
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the six months ended 31 December 2021 in $000s

Unaudited six Unaudited six
months ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Interestincome 185,886 190,375
Interest expense 176,709 180,523
Net interest income 4 9178 9,852
Other operating income 5 526 5
Total operating income 9,704 9,857
Operating expenses 6 3,769 3938
Net operating profit 5935 5918
Total comprehensive income 5935 5918
Statement of changes in equity
For the six months ended 31 December 2021 in S000s
Note Share Retained Total equity
capital earnings

Equity as at1July 2020 25,000 58,616 83,616
Net operating profit 12,007 12,007
Total comprehensive income for the year 12,007 12,007
Transactions with owners - ~
Dividend paid on 4 September 2020 (879) (879)
Equity as at1July 2021 25,000 69,744 94,744
Net operating profit 5935 5935
Total comprehensive income for the half year 5935 5935
Transactions with owners - -
Dividend paid on 3 September 2021 (857) (857)
Unaudited closing balance as at 31December 2021 17 25,000 74,822 99,822

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited authorised these

statements for issue on 28 February 2022.
e

Gtock =

c;aig'sﬁfb’o,.r Director Linda Robertson, Director
Board Chair Chair, Audit and Risk Committee
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Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2021 in $000s

Note Unaudited as at Audited as at
31 December 2021 30 June 2021

Assets
Financial assets
Receivables 42 43,587
Cash and bank balances 374,236 391835
Marketable securities 1,385,022 768,453
Deposits 841,628 654,961
Derivatives in gain 246,072 559,635
Loans 8 13513127 12,065,668
Non-financial assets
Prepayments 1.002 683
Other assets 9 218 345
Total assets 16,361,346 14,485,167
Equity
Share capital 16 25,000 25,000
Retained earnings 68.887 69,744
Total comprehensive income for the period 5935 -
Total equity 99,822 94,744
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions 10 93,014 40900
Bills n 534,258 609,624
Bond repurchases 12 225850 10,220
Derivatives in loss 415046 187,098
Bonds 13 14,732,861 13217759
Bomrower notes W 259934 224,281
Non-financial liabilities
Other liabilities 15 561 539
Total liabilities 16,261,524 14,390,422
Total equity and liabilities 16,361,346 14,485,167
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Statement of cash flows
For the six months ended 31 December 2021 in $000s

Unaudited six Unaudited six

months ended 31 months ended 31

December 2021 December 2020

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash applied to loans 8 (1427.636) (1,420,594)
Interest paid on bonds issued (215,363) (212,221)
Interest paid on bills issued 1,591) (1149)
Interest paid on borrower notes (212) 137
Interest paid on bond repurchases (254) (599)
Interest received from loans 76952 77156

Interest received from cash & cash equivalents 1,031 377

Interest received from marketable securities 5624 5376

Interest received from deposits 2,206 2978

Net interest on derivatives 136,753 139,963
Cash proceeds from provision of standby facilities 526 -

Payments to suppliers and employees (3927) (4172)
Net cash flow from operating activities 18 (1,425,888) (1,413,023)
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of marketable securities (594958) (27,701)
Purchase of deposits (185,743) (140,161)
Purchase of plant and equipment - -

Net cash flow from investing activities (780,701) (167,862)
Cash flow from financing activities

Cash proceeds from bonds issued 13 2,096,802 2,026,534
Cash proceeds from bills issued (75,367) (34910)
Cash proceeds from bond repurchases 158,143 (165,546)
Cash proceeds from borrower notes 35,509 37876

Dividends paid (857) (878)
Cash applied to derivatives (25,240) (124,161)
Net cash flow from financing activities 2,188,991 1,738,914

Net (decrease) / increase in cash (17,599) 158,029

Cash, Cash Equivalents and at beginning of year 391,835 165,826

Cash and cash equivalents at end of half year 374,236 323,854
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Notes to the financial
statements

1. Reporting entity

The New Zealand Local Govemment Funding
Agency Limited (LGFA) is a company registered
under the Companies Act 1993 and is subject to the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002.
LGFA is controlied by participating local
authorities and is a council-controlled
organisation as defined under section 6 of the
Local Government Act 2002. LGFA is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in
New Zealand.

The primary objective of LGFA is to optimise

the debt funding terms and conditions for
participating borrowers.

The registered address of LGFA is Level 8, City
Chambers, 142 Featherston Street, Wellington
Central, Wellington 6011.

These financial statements were authorised for
issue by the Directors on 28 February 2022.

2. Statement of compliance

The interim financial statements are for the six
months ended 31 December 2021 and are to be
read in conjunction with the annual report for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

The financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with New Zealand Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and

in compliance with NZ IAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting.

3. Basis of preparation

Measurement base

The financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis modified by the revaluation
of certain assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are prepared on an
accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand doliars rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless separately identified. The functional
currency of LGFAis New Zealand doliars.

Foreign currency conversions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency
are translated into New Zealand dollars using
exchange rates applied on the trade date of the
transaction.

18 LGFAHalf Year Report 2021 Financial Stotements

Changes in accounting policies

There have been no changes to accounting
policies.

Early adoption standards and interpretations
LGFA has not early adopted any standards.

Standards not yet adopted

LGFA does not consider any standards or
interpretations in issue but not yet effective
to have a significant impacton its financial
statements.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
bank accounts and deposits with an original
maturity of no more than three months.

Purchases and sales of all financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.

At each balance date, an expected creditloss
assessment is performed for all financial assets
and is calculated as either:

Credit losses that may arise from defauit events
that are possible within the next12 months,
where no significant increase in credit risk has
arisen since acquisition of the asset, or

Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible over the expected life of the
financial asset, where a significant increase in
credit risk has arisen since acquisition of the
asset.

Impairment losses on financial assets will
ordinarily be recognised on initial recognition as
a 12-month expected loss allowance and move

to a lifetime expected loss allowance if there

is a significant deterioration in credit risk since
acquisition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value less transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
both initially and subsequently at fair value.
They are reported as either assets or liabilities
depending on whether the derivative is in a net
gain or net loss position respectively.
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Fair value hedge

Where a derivative qualifies as a hedge ofthe
exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or
liability (fair value hedge) any gain or loss on the
derivative is recognised in profit and loss together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability.

The carrying amount of the hedged item is
adjusted by the fair value gain or loss on the
hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged.
Effective parts of the hedge are recognised in the
same area of profit and loss as the hedged item.

Other assets

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipmentare
initially recorded at cost

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis at
rates calculated to allocate the cost or valuation
of an item of property, plant and equipment, less
any estimated residual value, over its remaining
useful life.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise software and project
costs incurred for the implementation of the
treasury management system. Capitalised
computer software costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful

life of the software (three to seven years). Costs
associated with maintaining computer software
are recognised as expenses.

Other liabilities

Employee entitements

Employee entitements to salaries and wages,
annual leave and other similar benefits are
recognised in the profit and loss when they
accrue to employees.

Revenue

Interestincome

Interestincome is accrued using the effective
interest rate method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount The method applies this rate
to the principal outstanding to determine interest
income each period.

Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the period to which
they relate.

Interest expense

Interest expense is accrued using the effective
interest rate method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability to that
liability's net carrying amount. The method
applies this rate to the principal outstanding to
determine interest expense each period.

Income tax

LGFAis exempt from income tax under Section 14
of the Local Govemment Borrowing Act 2011.

Goods and services tax

All items in the financial statements are presented
exclusive of goods and service tax (GST),

except for receivables and payables, which are
presented on a GST-inclusive basis. Where GST is
not recoverable as input tax, then it is recognised
as part of the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
1o, the IRD is included as part of receivables or
payabies in the statement of financial position.

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD,
including the GST relating to investing and
financing activities, is classified as a net operating
cash flow in the statement of cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
exclusive of GST.

Segment reporting

LGFA operates in one segment being funding of
participating borrowers in New Zealand.

Judgements and estimations

The preparation of these financial statements
requires judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts. For example, the fair value

of financial instruments depends critically on
judgements regarding future cash flows, including
inflation assumptions and the risk-free discount
rate.

The estimates and associated assumptions

are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates and these estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis. Where these judgements
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial statements they are described in the
following notes.

The financial statements as at 31 December
2021 include estimates and judgements of the
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potential impact of COVID-19 and the Three
Waters Reform Programme on LGFA's financial
position and performance. Whilst there has
been no material impact on the estimates
and judgements at the date these financial

Revenue and expenditure

4, Netinterestincome

in S000s

Interest income

statements are authorised, it is noted that there
is significant uncertainty with regards to the
medium and long-term effects of COVID-19, as
well as the outcome of Three Waters Reform
Programme on the local govemment sector.

Unaudited six Unaudited six
months ended months ended
31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 1,036 385
Marketable securities 4,259 19
Deposits 3129 3,493
Derivatives 20,015 107,810
Loans 87,447 76,776
Fair value hedge ineffectiveness - -
Total interest income 185,886 190,375
Interest expense

Bills 1.591 1149
Bond repurchase transactions 39 325
Lease liability 5 9
Bonds 173.439 177963
Bomrower notes 1355 1,077
Total interest expense 176,709 180,523
Netinterest income 9,178 9,852

5. Other operating income

As at 31 December 2021, LGFA had provided credit standby facilities totalling $522 million to selected
councils. As at balance date, there were no drawdowns outstanding under the facilities.

in S000s

Standby facilities fee income

Total other operating income

20 LGFAHalf Year Report 2021 Financial Statements

Unaudited six Unaudited six
months ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

526 S

526 5
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6. Operating expenses

Unavudited six Unaudited six
months ended months ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

Issuance and on-lending expenses

Approved issuer levy 325 593
Rating agency fees 324 3n
NZDMO facility fee 250 308
Legal fees - issuance 25 294
NZX 390 340
Trustee fees S S0
Regulatory, registry, other fees 68 97
1,633 1,993
Other operating expenses
Information technology 399 367
Consultants 95 16
Directors fees 22 200
Insurance 43 42
Legal fees S 95
Other expenses 136 159

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit 55 54
Advisory services - -
Personnel 1145 1,012
2135 1,945

Total operating expenses 3,769 3938
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7. Hedge accounting

LGFA is exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowing, lending and investment activities and uses
interest rate swaps to manage this risk. For hedge accounting purposes, LGFA has designated these

swaps in fair value relationships to its fixed rate borrowings, loans and investments.

The following table shows the gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the hedged item attributable to

the hedged risk for fair value hedge relationships.

Unaudited
gain/(loss)
for the six

Unaudited
gain/(loss)
for the six

monthsended months ended
31 December 31 December

2021 2020
Hedging instruments - interest rate swaps 520.010 635,001
Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk (520.010) (635,001)

Ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss from fair value hedges -

The gains or losses on the hedging instrument (interest rate swaps) and the hedged item (bonds,
loans and investments) are mapped to the same fair vaiue account. For this reason, the statement of

comprehensive income will only report any ineffectiveness arising from the fair value hedge.
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8. Loans
Unaudited as at Audited as at
31 December 2021 30 June 2021
Short-term Loans Short-term Loans
loans loans

Ashburton District Council 10,021 60,757 10,01 60,723
Auckland Council - 3.381.550 - 3,303915
Bay of Plenty Regional Council 25,477 161153 25,428 155995
Buller District Council - 20,007 - 20,005
Canterbury Regional Council 4,008 62189 4,003 59,133
Carterton District Council L4013 12,752 - -
Central Hawkes Bay District Council 20mn 20,108 - 20,107
Christchurch City Council 2,003 2,083,566 14,533 1,951,017
Clutha District Council 2.005 20,061 2,004 16,042
Far North District Council - 71.810 - 51,702
Gisbome District Council - 80946 - 68,774
Gore District Council 6.016 26,585 6,01 26563
Greater Wellington Regional Council - 540,335 - 450,945
Grey District Council 3.993 21,670 3995 21,642
Hamilton City Council - 591533 - 481,019
Hastings District Council - 28.619 - 205,357
Hauraki District Council - 48139 - 44101
Hawkes Bay Regional Council - 29939 - 18,868
Horizons Regional Council 11.992 42,228 n,991 37194
Horowhenua District Council 16.014 118,260 16,000 92,178
Hurunui District Council 8018 30,081 8,002 30,062
Hutt City Council - 261,416 - 201,225
Invercargill City Council - 68,677 - 68,666
Invercargill City Holdings Ltd 29937 60,054 - -
Kaikoura District Council - 5.016 - 5,014
Kaipara District Council - 44)32 - 44,088
Kapiti Coast District Council - 250,572 - 230,366
Manawatu District Council 1,546 74153 1,522 72,681
Marlborough District Council 30243 87179 30226 73,136
Masterton District Council - 56,650 - 48,609
Matamata-Piako District Council - 30,097 - 26,567
Nelson City Council - 105,255 - 90,146
New Plymouth District Council - 18117 - 169999
Northland Regional Council - 14,148 - 14047
Opotiki District Council - 8,590 - 8,600

Otorohanga District Council - - - -
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in S000s Unaudited as at Audited as at
31 December 2021 30 June 2021
Short-term Loans Short-term
loans'

Palmerston North City Council - 177476 - 152,314
Porirua City Council - 156927 - 141,794
Queenstown Lakes District Council S0.N3 210.612 25,030 130,333
Rangitikei District Council - 3.020 - 3,020
Rotorua District Council 12.850 245,204 12,823 215,034
Ruapehu District Council 8,010 21497 8,005 21,474
Selwyn District Council - 65,180 - 60,129
South Taranaki District Council - 95.284 - 95,210
South Waikato District Council 13975 20,046 8987 15,030
Southland District Council 19996 16,819 - -
South Wairarapa District Council - 24,526 - 24,520
Stratford District Council - 2,273 - 222N
Taranaki Regional Council 1993 8,528 4999 -
Tararua District Council - 46135 - 44,100
Tasman District Council 26,065 176,151 27037 152,035
Taupo District Council - 135,302 - 125177
Tauranga City Council - 657.330 - 516,688
Thames-Coromandel District Council - 73.216 - 61145
Timaru District Council 225N 17,402 22,529 1781
Upper Hutt City Council 2999 76,225 - 65)53
Waikato District Council 4983 90.277 - 80189
Waikato Regional Council - 32,098 - 32,082
Waimakariri District Council - 170,642 - 170,506
Waipa District Council 26,533 105,282 8,000 90]23
Wairoa District Council - 8.042 - 8,041
Waitaki District Council (WD) 2497 17.542 2,498 12,523
Waitomo District Council 7on 24,052 4,003 30,045
Wellington City Council - 1,009,389 - 792,505
West Coast Regional Council 2,003 6,61 2,001 6,610
Western Bay Of Plenty District Council - 70,209 - 70,154
Westland District Council - 24,880 - 21,858
Whakatane District Council - 82,265 - 77203
Whanganui District Council 7513 100,362 7507 94,289
Whangarei District Council 9.986 162,416 9.993 162,296
Fair value hedge adjustment - (19.835) - 1,097)

382,396 13,130,731 287,140 1,778,528

1. As at 31 December 2021, $1,751 million of loans are due to mature within 12 months. This comprises all
short-term loans and $1,369 million of loans.
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9. Other assets

Unaudited as Audited as at

at 31 December 30 June

2021 2021

Intangible assets! 79 154
Right-of-use lease asset 139 190
Total other assets 218 345

1. Intangible assets comprise acquired and internally developed software costs incurred on the

implementation of LGFA’'s treasury management system.

10. Payables and provisions

in S000s Unaudited as Audited as at
at 31 December 30 June
2021 2021
Loans to be advanced 68,000 40,000
Unsettled investments 24,000 -
Trade creditors 576 658
Credit provision 265 193
Other provisions 172 49
Total receivables 93,014 40,900
1. Bills
Unavudited as at Face value Unamortised Accrued Total
31 December 2021 in S000’s premium interest
12 January 2022 70,000 - (10) 69,990
18 January 2022 55.000 - (17) 54983
3 February 2022 25,000 - (18) 24982
9 February 2022 80,000 - (70) 79930
1March 2022 50.000 - (72) 49928
1 March 2022 70,000 - (107) 69,893
15 March 2022 50,000 - (88) 49912
21 March 2022 27000 - (54) 26946
7 April 2022 65,000 - (142) 64,858
13 May 2022 43,000 - (164) 42,836
535,000 - (742) 534,258
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Audited as at Unamortised Accrued

30 June 2021 in S000's premium interest
7 July 2021 20,000 - (V) 19.999
15 July 2021 110,000 - (13) 109987
5 August 2021 25,000 - (8) 24992
11 August 2021 80,000 - (29) 7997
10 September 2021 75,000 - (46) TL954
17 September 2021 150,000 - (95) 149905
6 October 2021 20,000 - (20) 19980
14 October 2021 55,000 - (57) SLIL3
10 November 2021 50,000 - (73) 49927
8 December 2021 25,000 - (34) 24966
610,000 - (376) 609,624

12. Treasury stock and bond repurchases

Periodically, LGFA subscribes for LGFA bonds as part of its tender process and holds these bonds as
treasury stock. LGFA bonds held by LGFA as treasury stock are derecognised at the time of issue and no
liability is recognised in the statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2021, $1,200 million of LFGA
bonds had been subscribed as treasury stock.

LGFA makes these treasury stock bonds available to banks authorised as its tender counterparties to
borrow under short-term repurchase transactions. The objective of the bond lending facility is to assist
with improving secondary market liquidity in LGFA bonds. Bonds lent to counterparties are disclosed as a
separate stock lending liability on the face of the statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2021, bond repurchase transactions comprised:

in 8000s Unaudited as Audited as
at 31 December at 30 June

2021 2021

14 April 2022 15,163 -
15 April 2023 84,569 32,887
15 April 2024 10,033 -
15 April 2025 20,244 -
15 April 2026 3.826 -
15 April 2027 60.37 -
15 May 2028 4,852 -
20 April 2029 10.963 33,810
15 May 2031 9,505 -
14 April 2033 6,324 38957
15 May 2035 - -
15 April 2037 - 4566
225,850 110,220
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13. Bonds

Bonds on issue do notinclude $1,200 million face value of issued LGFA bonds subscribed by LGFA and held
as treasury stock. Refer Note 12: Treasury stock and bond repurchase transactions.

Unaudited as at Face Value  Unamortised
31 December 2021 premium
in S000's

Fixed interest bonds

Accrued Fair valve

interest hedge
adjustment

14 April 2022 1,605,000 5.592 9.579

15 April 2023 1.750.000 38.281 20,625

15 April 2024 1.648,000 %928 7946

15 April 2025 1.619.000 (13,009) 9.541

15 April 2026 1.390.000 3.296 4,468

15 April 2027 1.631,000 90,026 15.728

15 May 2028 700,000 (5.440) 2,045

20 April 2029 1.272.000 (13.369) 3826

15 May 2031 730,000 (4,336) 2133

14 April 2033 1,260,000 46,048 9.5N

15 May 2035 400,000 2,234 1558

15 April 2037 730,000 (13,169) 3029

Total fixed interest 14,735,000 150,984 90,148 (373,638) 14,602,493
Floating rate notes

14 October 2022 130,000 (20) 388 - 130,368
Total 14,865,000 150,964 90,536 (373,638) 14,732,861

Audited as at Face Value Unamortised
30 June 2021 premium

in 8000's

Fixed interest bonds

Accrued Fair valve
interest hedge
adjustment

14 April 2022 1,605,000 15,527 9,406

15 April 2023 1,660,000 46296 19,208

15 April 2024 1,528,000 17,466 7,233

15 April 2025 1,469,000 (20,190) B.499

15 April 2026 1,240,000 69N 3N3

15 April 2027 1,486,000 82140 14,068

20 April 2029 1,172,000 (10,512) 3458

15 May 2031 650,000 (4,966) 1,868

14 April 2033 1,170,000 37.817 8727

15 April 2037 700,000 (8,443) 2945

Total fixed interest 12,680,000 162,045 79,326 166,138 13,087,509
Floating rate notes

14 October 2022 130,000 (33) 283 - 130,250
Total 12,810,000 162,012 79,610 166,138 13,217,759
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14. Borrower notes

Bormrower notes are subordinated debt instruments which are required to be held by each local authority
that borrows from LGFA in an amount equal to a fixed percentage of the aggregate borrowings by that
local authority. The fixed percentage is 2.5% for loans issued from 1July 2020. Prior to this date, the fixed

percentage was 1.6%.

LGFA may convert borrower notes into redeemable shares if it has made calls for all unpaid capital to be

paid in full and the LGFA Board determines it is still at risk of imminent default.

15. Other liabilities

in S000s Unaudited as Audited as
at 31 December at 30 June

2021 2020

Lease liability 139 190
Accruals 422 349
Total receivables 561 539

Capital and dividends

16. Share capital

As at 31 December 2021, LGFA had 45 million ordinary shares on issue, 20 million of which remain uncalled.
All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each ordinary share. Ordinary shares have a

face value of $1 per share.
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17. Shareholder information

Registered holders of equity securities As at 31 December 2021 As at 30 June 2021
New Zealand Government 5.000,000 1% 5,000,000 1%
Auckland Council 3.731.960 8.3% 3,731,960 8.3%
Christchurch City Council 3.731.960 8.3% 3,731,960 8.3%
Hamilton City Council 3.731.960 8.3% 3,731,960 8.3%
Bay of Plenty Regional Council 3731958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Greater Wellington Regional Council 3731958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Tasman District Council 3.731.958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Tauranga City Council 3731958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Wellington City Council 3731958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Western Bay of Plenty District Council 3731958 8.3% 3,731958 8.3%
Whangarei District Council 1.492784 3.3% 1,492,784 3.3%
Hastings District Council 746,392 1.7% 746,392 1.7%
Marlborough District Council 400,000 09% 400,000 09%
Selwyn District Council 373196 0.8% 373,196 0.8%
Gisbome District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Hauraki District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Horowhenua District Council 200.000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Hutt City Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Kapiti Coast District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Manawatu District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Masterton District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
New Plymouth District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Otorohanga District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Palmerston North City Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
South Taranaki District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Taupo District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Thames - Coromandel District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Waimakariri District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Waipa District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Whakatane District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Whanganvi District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%

45,000,000 100% 45,000,000 100%
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Other Notes

18. Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flow from operating activities

in S000s Unaudited six Unaudited six

months ended months ended

31 December 31December

20 2020

Net profit/(loss) for the period 5.935 5918

Cash applied to loans (1,427,636) (1,420,594)

Non-cash adjustments

Amortisation and depreciation (3.955) 1937
Working capital movements

Netchange in trade debtors and receivables 13 149

Net change in prepayments (319) (321)

Netchange in accruals 73 M3)

Net Cash From Operating Activities (1,425,888) (1,413,023)

19. Related parties

Identity of related parties

LGFA is related to the local authorities setout in
the Shareholder Information in note 16.

LGFA operates under an annual Statement

of Intent that sets out the intentions and
expectations for LGFA's operations and lending to
participating borrowers.

Shareholding local authorities, and non-
shareholder local authorities who borrow

more than $20 million, are required to enter

into a guarantee when they join or participate

in LGFA. The guarantee is in respect of the
payment obligations of other guaranteeing local
authorities to the LGFA (cross guarantee) and of
the LGFAitself.

30 LGFAHalf Year Report 2021 Financial Statements

Related party transactions

LGFA was established for the purpose of raising
funds from the market to lend to participating
borrowers. The lending to individual councils

is disclosed in note 8, and interestincome
recognised on this lending is shown in the
statement of comprehensive income.

The purchase of LGFA borrower notes by
participating borrowers. Refer note 14.
The Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management)

provides LGFA with a committed credit facility and
is LGFA's derivatives counterparty.
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Directory

RArangi tauwaea

Postal address Main Phone

PO. BOx 5704 +64 L 974 6530

Lambton Quay

Wellington 6145 General Enquiries

Igfa@igfa.co.nz

Office Hours
Monday through Friday, Staff E-Mail Addresses

09.00-17.00 hrs firstname lastname@Igfa.co.nz
Except Public Holidays

Yo,
\ o ,”Wo,s
Wellington g o
Registered office g 3 N
Level 8 o§
r &
Gty Chambers 142 Featherston Street & c?\g
142 Featherston Street ‘ g &
Wellington 6011 s 3 g s
(entrance on Johnston Street) Moy, 4 és
4 g
YStoms Ste
Auckland S

Level 5
Walker Wayland Centre

Sore
°*Sin

S3 Fort Street
Auckland 1010

Gorg st
t

953 Fort Street
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2D,

LGFA

New Zealand Loca
Government Funding Agency

Te POtea Kdwanatanga a-rohe

Igfa.co.nz
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8.2 KAPITI COAST HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2022
Kaituhi | Author: Laura Bertelsen, Advisor Strategic Projects
Kaiwhakamana | Authoriser: Natasha Tod, Group Manager Strategy, Growth and Recovery

TE PUTAKE | PURPOSE

1 This report requests that the Strategy and Operations Committee note the findings and
formally receive the Kapiti Coast Housing Needs Assessment 2022.

HE WHAKARAPOPOTO | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2 The Kapiti Coast Housing Needs Assessment 2022 (the Housing Needs Assessment) helps
to develop an understanding for what housing will help people thrive in their communities,
what support services are needed, and what makes the right type of house a home.

3 The Housing Needs Assessment helps to illustrate the extent of the housing and support
services issues in Kapiti, who is most affected and gives an evidence base to work from
when deciding on how to prioritise a response.

4 The Housing Needs Assessment comprises of two reports, a quantitative analysis, and a
gualitative analysis:

o ‘Research Report: Housing Demand and Need in Kapiti District’ by lan Mitchell
(Livingston and Associates Ltd) and Chris Glaudel (Community Housing Solutions
Ltd)

¢ ‘Not just a house, a life’ by The Urban Advisory

5 Attached in Appendix One is the quantitative analysis ‘Research Report: Housing Demand
and Need in Kapiti District’ by lan Mitchell (Livingston and Associates Ltd) and Chris Glaudel
(Community Housing Solutions Ltd).

6 Attached in Appendix Two is the qualitative analysis ‘Not just a house, a life’ by The Urban
Advisory.
TE TUKU HAEPAPA | DELEGATION

7 The Strategy and Operations Committee has the delegated authority to consider this matter.

TAUNAKITANGA | RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Strategy and Operations Committee:

a) Receive the final Kapiti Coast Housing Needs Assessment 2022, subject to minor
editorial changes by the Chief Executive.

b) Acknowledges the significant contribution in the development of the Kapiti Coast
Housing Needs Assessment 2022 by Iwi partners, the community, local
organisations, advisory groups, and businesses.

TUAPAPA | BACKGROUND

8 A Housing Programme Assessment report, completed by The Property Group (TPG), was
endorsed by Council in April 2020, with a view to helping Council identify some actions it
could take in developing a housing programme and what the Council/s role could be in
supporting affordable and public housing in the community. This was completed following
the Kapiti Coast Communities Housing Taskforce report.

9 The Housing Programme Assessment report identified four key issues were identified which
should be addressed by the housing programme:
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10

11
12

a) Investigate ways to increase the supply of public housing.

b) Improve the quality of existing public housing.

c) Encourage take up of existing development capacity.

d) Improve the availability of emergency and transitional housing.

Completion of a Housing Needs Assessment for the Kapiti Coast was identified as a key
early deliverable of the Housing Programme and was recommended by both the Taskforce
report and the TPG report, to improve the quality of information available for Council,
partners, and stakeholders. It provides a robust evidence base to use in discussions with
government agencies and others, to inform what role they can play in responding to Kapiti’s
housing challenges as well as to help target solutions to where they are most needed.

A briefing on the Housing Needs Assessment was held with Council on 1 March 2022.

A public workshop was held with Council and Iwi representatives on 5 April 2022 to discuss
the findings.

HE KORERORERO | DISCUSSION

He take | Issues

13

14

15

16

17

18

Developing the Needs Assessment

The purpose of the Housing Needs Assessment is to identify housing trends across a range
of demographic characteristics and better understand what housing is needed by the
community, both now and in the future, beyond just the number of dwellings. It has involved
comprehensive research by external parties who have specialist expertise in both
guantitative and qualitative assessments.

The Housing Needs Assessment provides insight into challenges across the housing
continuum and the different types of housing required to ensure that delivery of future
housing solutions is fit-for-purpose for the community. It also provides insights about the
impacts of housing pressures on the community and how these can impact social, cultural,
environmental, and economic wellbeing.

To assist with the completion of the Housing Needs Assessment, The Urban Advisory,
Livingston and Associates Ltd and Community Housing Solutions Ltd were contracted by
Council to assist with the development of both the qualitative and quantitative data reports.
Collectively the two reports make up the Housing Needs Assessment.

Data and insights were obtained through a five-part mixed method research process, which
included Iwi-led research and data provision, quantitative data assessment, community
korero events, a community survey, and a business survey.

Partners and stakeholders that were invited to participate in the process of developing the
housing needs assessment include:

e |wi partners

e local community

¢ Government agencies (national and regional offices)

e national and regional non-Government organisations (NGO'’s)

e organisations and advisory groups working with young people, people with
disabilities, and older people

e local businesses
e Community Housing Providers and social support organisations

There was a high level of participation and engagement in the process, much of which was
undertaken in the latter part of 2021 and early 2022. The following were key inputs into the
gualitative assessment (‘Not just a house, a life’):
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19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

e Atotal of 1,311 survey responses were received during the community housing
survey.

e 44 community korero events were held, with over 160 people attending across the
various events.

e 113 businesses participated in the business survey.

The quantitative assessment (Research Report: Housing Demand and Need in Kapiti
District) provides a detailed analysis of a range of demographics across the whole district as
well as more localised areas within the district.

The Housing Needs Assessment has been developed as an information base available for
use by everyone with an interest in housing in the Kapiti community.

Key findings

Following an analysis of the qualitative and quantitative data collected through the research
process, there was widespread agreement that change is need across the whole housing
system. Both reports incorporate summaries of key trends and findings from their research
and the intention here is not to duplicate that information.

The Housing Needs Assessment provides a robust information resource which confirms the
level of housing need in Kapiti, including for identified vulnerable groups. It also proposes
recommendations for addressing the range of housing issues identified, which have helped
inform development of the Kapiti Coast District Council Housing Strategy and actions.

The Housing Needs Assessment provides an overview of solutions identified through the
engagement process (Not just a house, a life; The Urban Advisory, page 101). The solutions
can be grouped into three key areas:

o We need the right housing in the right places
¢ We need coordination across agencies

e The physical house and the wrap-around services required to make solutions last are
both essential.

Housing affordability is an increasing challenge with a number of factors driving increased
demand for dwellings from households shifting to Kapiti.

Current population forecasts estimate that there will be 32,000 more people living in Kapiti by
2051 and more than 15,000 new dwellings required to house them (including over 5,000 in
the next 10 years).

Housing stress impacts a range of wellbeing outcomes and is often the key issue which
impacts other outcomes such as community connection and job security.

Evidence collected through the development of the Housing Needs Assessment identifies
that housing stress in Kapiti is extensive and “is having a domino effect, negatively impacting
a range of wellbeing outcomes. The issues are all so interconnected, but housing is often
the first domino to fall, impacting people’s whole lives and compounding issues that span
generations” (Not just a house, a life; The Urban Advisory, page 11)

The Housing Needs Assessment identifies that Otaki has the highest level of housing need
and the greatest affordability pressures on its residents.

People are being forced to move from their homes and are becoming displaced from their
communities due to housing affordability. There is currently a lack of choice in housing, and
what is available doesn’t always match well with needs.

Nga kowhiringa | Options

30

Options for the issues raised in this report have been outlined in the above discussion.
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Tangata whenua

31 Council officers commenced conversations with iwi partners about the development of a
Housing Needs Assessment for the Kapiti Coast in 2021. lwi that were involved in the
development of the Housing Needs Assessment were:

e Ngati Raukawa, through the five hapi who constitute Nga Hapa o Otaki
e Te Atiawa ki Whakarongotai
¢ Ngati Toa Rangatira and specifically their hapt Ngati Haumia of Paekakariki

32 Akey aim agreed with iwi was to provide a better understanding of the need across the
housing continuum to help attract future investment in Maori, social and affordable housing in
the district.

33 A partnership approach was taken during the information gathering, where iwi were
supported to lead and design their kdrero and hui to contribute to Development of the
Housing Needs Assessment.

34  This input has been has formed into an iwi specific section in the qualitative report (Not just a
house, a life; The Urban Advisory, pages 19-36) which outlines Iwi housing needs and
aspirations in the Kapiti Coast District.

35 Council’s officers are very appreciative of the level of engagement and input of our iwi
partners in this mahi.

Panonitanga ahuarangi | Climate change

36 The Housing Needs Assessment is an evidence base that helps inform housing needs
provision, it does not directly make climate change considerations. However, it is an input for
others to consider in other processes and decisions that do have a direct bearing on
council’s climate change goals, such as decisions about location and typology of new
housing.

37 Feedback on climate change and the environment was provided by Iwi and the community
as part of this process and highlights the importance of environment wellbeing in considering
the impacts of current and future housing need.

Ahumoni me nga rawa | Financial and resourcing

38 There are no financial implications associated with the approval of this document.

Ture me nga Turaru | Legal and risk

39 There were no specific legal considerations relevant to the approval of this document.

Nga panga ki nga kaupapa here | Policy impact

40 Inthe 2021-41 Long Term Plan, following consultation with the community, Council made a
key decision to “take a bigger role in housing” with a focus on increasing our activities to
support and enable development, as well as looking at how Council can directly contribute
towards improving housing options in the district.

41 The insights provided by the Housing Needs Assessment has fed directly into the
development of the Kapiti Coast District Council Housing Strategy 2022 and provides an
important foundation for the future work programme to support the delivery of housing in the
district.

42 It will also provide valuable insights for Council’s wider policy work programme with the
opportunity for housing to be considered in the development of other workstreams due to the
nature of housing issues and the wider impact it has on wellbeing for the community.
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43  The Housing Needs Assessment has been developed as an information tool which is to be
available for use by anyone with an interest in housing, in the Kapiti community. It will also be
made available to key partners and stakeholders, including central government agencies.

TE WHAKAWHITI KORERO ME TE TUHONO | COMMUNICATIONS & ENGAGEMENT

Te mahere tihono | Engagement planning

44  This matter has a low level of a significance under Council’s Significance and Engagement
Policy.

45  An engagement plan is not needed to implement this decision.

Whakatairanga | Publicity

Council will use its established communications channels to inform the community of this decision
and relevant work associated with the completion of the housing needs assessment. A
communications plan has been developed to inform the community and key stakeholders of
Council’s decision and the further work associated with the wider housing programme. 48

The communications approach to be taken will include specific actions to target
government agencies, key partners, and stakeholders, as well as making the reports
available on the Council website.

NGA APITIHANGA | ATTACHMENTS

1. Research Report Housing Demand and Need Kapiti Coast District 4
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We disclaim any liability that may arise from any person acting on the material within.
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1.

Executive Summary

In accordance with your instructions we have prepared our report on the current and future housing demand in
Kapiti Coast District. This report has been prepared for Kapiti Coast District Council to assist them to better
understand housing trends in Kapiti Coast District across a range of demographic characteristics. This report
should not be used for any other purpose or by any other party.

The assignment’s objective is to provide detailed analysis of housing demand by a range of demographic
characteristics including:

. Tenure (owner occupiers, private renters and the need for social housing);
. Age of the household reference person; and
. Household composition (household types will include couple only, couples with children, one parent,

one person and other).

111 Key trends

Our analysis indicates housing affordability is an increasing challenge with a number of factors driving increased
demand for dwellings from households shifting to Kapiti. These include the expected completion of key transport
infrastructure projects and the lower house prices when compared to other parts of the greater Wellington
housing market (Porirua and Wellington City in particular). The impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the
decentralisation of employment and the increased proportion of people working from home has also probably
increased the appeal of Kapiti. Many of the trends identified are larger societal changes in demographics and
external economic forces that cannot be controlled at a local level. Among the trends detailed in the report are:
. Kapiti Coast District is projected to grow by 5,680 households (or 24%) over the next ten years (2018 to
2028) followed by growth of an additional 5,090 households (or 17%) over the following ten years;

. Kapiti Coast District like most other housing markets is expected to experience a gradual decline in the
rate of owner occupation. However, the rate of decline is expected to be less than other areas around
the country due to its ongoing ability to attract buyers from outside the district;

. Over the next 30 years the district’s population is expected to age and result in strong growth in the
number of people aged 65 years and older and, as a consequence, the number of one person and couple
only households are expected grow significantly faster than other household types;

. Although the demand for smaller multi-unit dwellings is expected to increase, demand is expected to
continue to be dominated by households buying standalone dwellings. Multi-unit dwellings are
projected to account for 34% of all new dwellings between 2018 and 2048;

. Housing affordability has declined over the last decade and in 2021, 88% of renters could not affordably
pay the median market rent and 95% could not affordably service the mortgage required to buy a
dwelling at the lower quartile house sale price (currently $696.000); and

. Housing need has increased with the district from 3,730 households in 2018 (16% of all households) to
an estimated 4,120 households in 2021 (17% of all households). This level of housing need is considered

moderate when compared to other local authority areas.

Kapiti Coast Housing Demand and Need R21099
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The number of households living on the Kapiti Coast is projected to increase with both the number of owner
occupier and renter households expected to grow and the number of people aged 65 years and older is expected
to grow faster than other age groups. This has implications for the mix of household composition and potentially
demand for different dwelling typologies. Figure 1.1 presents the projected trend in the number of households
by composition and tenure between 2018 and 2048.

Figure 1.1: The number of households by tenure and composition

12,000

10,000
“
=
o

< 8,000
@
v
2
2

£ 6,000
°
=

'é 4,000
>
=

2,000

o]

owner owner owner owner owner renters - renters - renters - renters - renters -
occupiers occupiers occupiers occupiers occupiers Couple Couples One One other
-Couple -Couples -One -One - other only with parent person
only with parent  person

m2018 m2048

Source: Modelled based on data from KCDC/Sense Partners and Statistics New Zealand
NB: Numbers are rounded to the nearest 10in the modelling

The strongest percentage growth is projected to occur in renter households particularly those couple only and
one person households. Owner occupiers are also expected to experience strong growth in couple only and one
person households. Owner occupiers are projected to comprise 60% of the total growth and renter households
40%.

Between 2018 and 2048, approximately, 34% of the growth in demand is projected to be for multi-unit dwellings.
This reflects the underlying affordability of multi-unit dwellings and a shift in household propensities to live in
multi-unit dwellings over time. Changes in the demographic profile of households suggest owner occupier
demand for standalone dwellings will remain strong although there will be increased demand for multi-unit

dwellings as a result of a greater proportion of older one person and couple only households.

1.1.2 Housing affordability

Housing affordability comes under pressure when housing costs increase at a faster rate than household
incomes. Variations in interest rates can mask the underlying trends in first home buyer affordability in the short

to medium term.

Kapiti Coast Housing Demand and Need R21099
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Table 1.1 presents the trend in median house sale prices, rents and household incomes between 2001 and 2021
as well as the proportion of median household income (MHI) required to affordably® rent a dwelling at the lower
quartile or median market price or alternatively service the mortgage? required to buy a dwelling at the lower
quartile house sale price.

Table 1.1: Median house prices, median rents and median gross household incomes - 2001 to 2021

Year Rents, lower quartile house price and medianincome Housing costs as a % of MHI
R = oy v T oo e

2001 $173 $198 $130,000 $33,600 27% 31% 33%
2006 $200 $243 $230,000 $42,500 24% 30% 51%
2013 $274 $326 $272,000 $53,400 27% 32% 35%
2018 $348 $407 $425,000 $64,100 28% 33% 41%
2020 $392 $455 $550,000 $68,700 30% 34% 48%
2021 $432 $505 $696,000 $71,100 32% 37% 58%
Chge 01 to 21 150% 155% 435% 112% 5% pts 6% pts 25% pts

Source: based on data from Statistics New Zealand, MBIE and Headway Systems

When 2021 is compared to 2001, it takes between five and six percentage points more of median household
income to affordably pay the lower quartile and median market rent in Kapiti Coast District. The cost of
affordably servicing a loan to buy a dwelling at the lower quartile house sale price has increased 25 percentage
points. This would have been significantly higher had interest rates not fallen during this time period by four
percentage points.

The deterioration in housing affordability has increased the number of private renter occupied dwellings
experiencing housing stress. Renter occupied dwellings are considered to experience housing stress when they
pay more than 30% of their gross household income in rent. Private renter housing stress is higher for low income
households. Between 2001 and 2018 the proportion of stressed private renters between increased from:

. 84% of in 2001 to 91% in 2018 for those with household incomes between $0 and $30,000;

. 15% in 2001 to 82% in 2018 for those with household incomes between $30,000 and $50,000; and

. 2% in 2001 to 49% in 2018 for those with household incomes between $50,000 and $70,000.

113 The housing continuum

The Housing Continuum provides insight into the relative sizes of the different housing sub-groups along a
continuum which stretches from emergency and homeless households to owner occupation. This progression
can be summarised as:

. Emergency, homelessness and crowding;

. Social renters with housing needs in addition to financial affordability;

* Assumes no more than 30% of household incomes is spent either paying the rent or servicing a mortgage.
2 Assumes a 10% deposit, 25 year term, and market floating interest rate.

Kapiti Coast Housing Demand and Need R21099
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. Stressed private renters paying more than 30% of their household income in rent;
. Private renters paying less than 30% of their household income in rent but unable to affordably buy a
dwelling at the lower quartile house sale price (LQHP);
. Private renter households with sufficient income to affordably buy a dwelling at the lower quartile

house sale price; and

. Owner occupier households.

Changes in the relative size of these groups reflect the pressures within the continuum overtime. Figure 1.2
presents the modelled housing continuum as at 2018 and 2021?

Figure 1.2: Housing Continuum 2018 and 2021
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Source: Modelled based on data from Statistics New Zealand
NB: Numbers are rounded to the nearest 10 in the modelling & consequently total households may vary between tables.

The largest group of renter households are categorised as stressed (paying more than 30% of their household
income in housing costs). There is also a relatively large group of renters who are earning sufficient income to
pay the median rent however earn insufficient income to affordably purchase a dwelling at the lower quartile
house sale price.

! These estimates assume the number of social housing units remains constant.
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114 Housing Need

Housing need is a measure of the total number of renter households within a community which require some
assistance to meet their housing requirements. Total renter housing need’ encapsulates a number of different
groups of households and includes the following groups: financially stressed private renter households; those
households whose housing requirements are met by social, third sector and emergency housing; and people who
are homeless or living in crowded dwellings.

Total renter housing need = stressed private renters + social housing tenants (KO tenants) + other renter
needy households

Table 1.2 presents the analysis of total housing need in Kapiti District as at 2018 and 2021.

Table 1.2: Total Housing Need - 2018 to 2021

Financial Other Need* Total % of All | % of All | Unmet need (A +C)

Housing | Kiinga Other Total hhids in | Renters Number | As a % of

Stress (A)| Ora needy Other need of hhids | all hhids

Renters | hhids® | Need (B+ (A+D)
(8) (©) €=D)

Kapiti
2018 3,020 210 490 700 3,720 60.6% 15.6% 3,510 14.7%
2021 3,380 220 520 740 4,120 63.8% 16.5% 3,900 15.6%
Horowhenua-2018 | 2,150 170 460 630 2,780 63% 19% 2,610 17.8%
Porirua City-2018 1,580 2,630 440 3,070 4,650 69% 25% 2,020 10.9%

NB: Numbers are rounded to the nearest 10.
Source: Modelling housing outcomes based on data from census, population projections (Statistics New Zealand), HUD, MBIE,
and KO.

The overall level of housing need has increased between 2018 and 2021. Housing need relative to the total
number of renters and all households is lowest in Kapiti when compared to Horowhenua and Porirua City. Unmet
need as a proportion of total households in Kapiti was 15.6% of all households in 2021. Kapiti's unmet housing
need as a proportion of all households is higher than in Porirua City because it has far fewer social housing units
to address this housing need.

The relative level of housing need is expected to increase in Kapiti Coast District. Between 2018 and 2048 total
need is projected to increase by 3,730 households (or 100%) and this reflects the projected increase in the

4 Other need’ encapsulates those households who because of their circumstances have housing needs in addition to
affordability. Social housing is defined as the number of households, who because of their circumstances are in Kainga Ora
(KO), local authority, and third sector housing. Table 1.6 presents the analysis of total housing need as at 2018, and 2021.

* Other needy households includes Kapiti Coast Council’s housing stock of 118 units plus other CHPs housing stock along with
emergency and transitional housing, homeless households and an adjustment for crowded households.
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number of older one person and couple only renter households aged 65 years and older. These older renter

households have relatively fixed low-income households with high levels of housing stress.

While the overall level of need has increased across Kapiti Coast District, subareas within Kapiti are experiencing
that need to differing degrees. Table 1.3 below provides a summary of six measures of housing availability,
suitability, affordability and children living in poverty by subarea. The measures are ranked by ordinal values
from lowest to highest levels of impact (6 indicating a higher amount). The Otaki subareas stands out from the

others as experiencing the highest need overall and in nearly every measure.

Table 1.3 presents a summary of various measures showing the subareas with the highest relative housing need
in Kapiti District.

Table 1.3 Summary by subarea of relative housing status measures

Housing status Otaki Waikanae Paraparaumu | Raumati Paekidkiriki Rural
% unoccupied dwellings 5 4 1 2 3 6
% renter crowding 6 2 3 1 5 4
Rents as % of income 6 4 2 3 1 5
% of stressed renter h/h 5 2 4 5 3 1
% h/h in housing need 6 2 4 3 5 1
% of children in poverty 6 3 2 1 4 5
Total 34 15 16 15 21 22

NB: The housing status measures are from Table 4.1; Table 5.2; Table 8.6; Table 8.14; Table 8.20 and Table 9.3.

In summary, the number of households living in Kapiti Coast District is projected to increase by 62% over the next
30 years. However, the nature of the demand is likely to change reflecting the variation in the metropolitan
area’s households by tenure, age of the household reference person and household composition. These changes

will result in:

. More one person and couple only households as well as a moderate fall in the rate of owner occupation;

. The number of renter households across all types of household composition is expected to increase;

. An 87% increase in renter and owner occupier households aged 65 years and over;

. A projected 100% increase in housing need, dominated by older one person and couple only renter
households aged 65+;

. Demand for social and affordable housing will increase. Existing pressures are evident in the significant

increase in Emergency Housing Special Needs Grants to 52,750,833 in the year ending June 2021 with
the average length of stay increasing to nearly 15 weeks; and
. The Otaki subarea demonstrates the highest level of housing need and affordability pressures across

multiple measures.
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115 Policies and Strategies

The Kapiti Coast housing market is part of the greater Wellington regional market. And for maximum impact a
regional approach is required amongst councils and central government to coordinate actions and policies.
Whilst Kapiti Coast District has many levers to utilise, it needs to continually monitor regional context and trends.
Incentives or requirements adopted by the Kapiti Coast District need to consider the options available to
developers and households regionally to ensure they work as intended. In addition, there is significant legislative
change underway creating uncertainty in the housing landscape.

Policies and strategies to respond to changing demographics of an aging population and smaller household
sizes include ways to support aging in place, deliver smaller typologies, and ensure the overall built environment
is responsive to the future resident population. Recommended policies and strategies to consider are:

. Offer incentives to encourage the adoption of universal design in newly built homes;

. Provide materials on universal design choices in planning and consenting materials;

. Provide information to increase awareness of the district’s projected demographic changes;

. Organise events to provide information and support for households considering downsizing;

. Evaluate minimum density residential zones to encourage a mix of 1 & 2 bedroom homes on smaller
sections within a traditional subdivision of 3 & 4+ bedroom homes;

. Engage with neighbouring councils on the use of Inclusionary housing policies that could also be used to
ensure the delivery of smaller typologies in new developments;

. Ensure the District Plan does not inhibit partitioning of homes or the addition of accessory dwelling
units;

. Ensure the District Plan results in retirement villages which are integrated and connected with the
community;

. Offer targeted incentives to achieve the desired level of intensification and smaller typologies in new

developments;

. Design public spaces and facilities to cater to a range of ages and abilities to foster and maintain
community connections; and

. Invest in assets on a commercial basis to support social outcomes where identified gaps exist.

Recommended policies and strategies to respond to affordability trends and supporting households in need

include ways to address regional drivers, lead local responses, and support new affordable homes for both rental

and ownership are:

. Actively participate in the Regional Housing Approach and Action Plan being developed through the
Wellington Regional Growth Framework to agree specific actions and policies across the councils;

. Explore a regional approach to Inclusionary Housing through the Wellington Regional Growth
Framework;

. Coordinate central government agencies, non-governmental organisations and developers to respond to
the affordability needs in the district;

. Compile a land register of Council and central government properties suitable for residential

development in the district;

Kapiti Coast Housing Demand and Need R21099
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. Engage with Kainga Ora to confirm their intentions for public housing supply in the district as community
housing providers are hesitant to proceed without knowing this information;
. Utilise Council teams to help coordinate across community organisations providing services to local
residents;
. Consider a range of incentives identified by housing providers to deliver transitional, social, affordable

rental and progressive home ownership tenures meeting the affordability needs identified in the report.
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2.

Introduction

In accordance with your instructions we have prepared our report on the current and future housing demand in
Kapiti Coast District. This report has been prepared for Kapiti Coast District Council to assist them to better
understand housing trends in Kapiti Coast District across a range of demographic characteristics. This report
should not be used for any other purpose or by any other party.

The assignment’s objective is to provide detailed analysis of housing demand by a range of demographic
characteristics including:

. Tenure (owner occupiers, private renters and the need for social housing);
. Age of the household reference person; and
. Household composition (household types will include couple only, couples with children, one parent,

one person and other).

In addition, a review of the current housing stock typology is included, along with the implica